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Prologue: The Mission (2145):

It was 11 am in Cape Canaveral. The room was full of 15 people who would be colonists in upcoming Mars Missions. They had been selected, and this was their first day at Nasa. There was a live feed of a rocket being loaded being broadcast around the world. The screen they were watching changed as the rocket faded away and showed Mars and a voice over begun:
“Mars, a desert wasteland with nothing on it, the big red planet where nothing grows. Well that was the case, in 2033 our first astronauts landed on Mars using a ship like what we have today. It uses a radioactive reaction for constant acceleration. The first people to set foot on mars spent a week on the equator taking photos,
and looking at rocks.
“In 2036 our next astronauts landed on Mars where they spent two weeks. They landed at one location, did some soil digs. Drove 150 km to another location then did more experiments and left.
“In 2039, with the funding of the newly formed Martian Corps, the next mission landed where the Capital lies today, 50km south from the northern polar ice cap. They spent a month exploring and doing
digs and found an underground lake. They tested the water which was drinkable, and they proved that crops could be grown on Mars. NASA Then signed a contract with Martian Corps to make a colony on Mars, the Corps would fund it, create the necessary technology, NASA would train the astronauts and launch the probes.
“In 2042 the first long haul mission was sent to the same location as the previous mission, they started growing crops and did the core construction of a permanent colony. They stayed for three years and were picked up when a ship came back with the first settlers in the first Charon ship.
“On Mars there are two polar ice caps one on the North pole and one at the South pole. Today on Mars we have three bases. The Capital lies over the underground lake and uses its water for crops and fuel. The capital has around 1500 hundred residents and is powered by three hundred solar panels each producing 1000 kilowatts of power a week. There is the backup power grid which lies 300km south and is 100 acres of solar panels. We have the polar base which has around 100 people on it and its primary goal is providing drinking water for the Capital and city Alpha two, using the massive underground pipes that were completed fifty years ago. City Alpha two has approximately 500 people and produces most of the crops for all of Mars where the capital focuses on science and technology, such as the soil and communicating with us, managing the probes and mining the Martian ore we need on Earth. All our cities have a rail tracks over the pipes, and have solar panels every five kilometres, so they can easily send supplies to each other.
“We have two passenger ships the Charon one and two, named after the Greek God who ferried soles from earth to the underworld or the next world. We also have our cargo vessels the Demeter one and two named after the Greek Goddess of the harvest. These four ships travel in pairs a month apart to and from Mars. They have gravity caused from the centripetal force of the rotating modules of the ships. Acceleration is used from an argon reaction which produces a constant acceleration. Last week Charon two returned and our representatives returned to earth. The Demeter two has docked with the Charon, and most of our supplies are loaded to the Demeter. Today will be the last supply to the Demeter two and tonight it will begin its eight-month voyage to mars.”
The video stopped and cut to the live feed, the same voice over continued.
“Now we see the live launch of the final supply mission to the Demeter and tomorrow we begin working on the Charon supply and maintenance. Launch count down 5, 4, 3, 2, 1.” The probe ignited and took off. “Their she goes we send more supplies for the people of Mars where life is easy, joyful and everyone is happy.”
Meanwhile as the video ended, on Mars James is in a crop habitat and the very joyful words can be heard at Mars control “Oh for fuck sake, I’m fuckin’ sick of this shit.”




The Martian Rebellion





Phase 1: The Beginning





Chapter 1: The 100th anniversary

It was Monday 8th of July in 2145 at 11am when it all started. James was in the crop Habitat looking at the All in one regulator. It combined the Oxygenator, Atmospheric regulator and the water reclaimer. Today was also the hundredth anniversary of the first settlers coming to mars, and the Charon was reaching orbit and would soon be delivering 15 new colonists and three representatives to Mars. James ran into a problem with the All in one regulator, “Oh for fuck sake, I’m fuckin’ sick of this shit.” He forgot that he was being monitored, and that Laura the director of Martian borns could hear him. Laura was just outside of the habitat sitting at the main control room for crop production habitats in the Capital.
“What’s the problem James?” Laura understood the frustration. She wasn’t in charge of the Mars base; she was a Martian born, and spoke for the others that were born on Mars. Usually when colonists came the Demeter came a month before with their supplies and the other probes arrived at the same time, it took two weeks to safely send the supplies from the Demeter to Mars. The supplies were arranged in three groups, the highest priority was upcoming Colonist, then other supplies for the Polar base and city Alpha two. Then they could unload the supplies they needed for the Capital which was usually about a week before the colonists arrived. They had to set everything up for the colonists to make it nice for them for when they arrived. This was a pain because even if parts for malfunctioning equipment arrived it was a week before they could get it. This time the Demeter had arrived a week late.
“I need to replace one of the valves for this regulator, it’s got a leak somewhere so it’s not getting the pressure it needs, or at least that’s what it thinks. So, it’s actually putting too much pressure into the Habitat. The leak in the pipe is in the Habitat so it leaks into the Habitat. Anyway, I need to shut it down which means the crops would starve of oxygen and pressure to fix it, I had asked for a spear oxygenator for the repair, but it hasn’t been unloaded yet.”
“Is it urgent, what do you need?” The main city wasn’t contained in an atmospheric canvas dome like city Alpha two was, the capital was an interconnected network of habitats and houses which wasn’t ideal. They could separate from each other in case of a breach, but it wasn’t full proof. The capital was also poorly designed by the people on Earth, they just designed it as it expanded, the relevant buildings were made, then just attached to existing ones on Mars. It was pretty much like a giant Lego set.
“I can probably duct tape it up, but I need to shut it down and pull it apart, which will only take me two minutes, but I need to get a confirmation from Earth or the Charon.”
“It will be twenty minutes before you get a reply at least.” All other scientists and colonists of the base were preparing for the colonist’s arrival and James and Laura would have too as well, but this was an urgent matter, under no circumstances were Mars allowed to disrupt anything to do with colonist’s arrival, which meant they had to communicate with Earth without relaying the message through the Charon or asking Charon.
“It’s risky, the atmosphere reading in here is 1.8 atmosphere’s already we risk popping any minute I’m going to shut down, you can order me not to if you want but either way, I have to do this.”
“As your superior and following the rulebook written by Earth, I order you not to. But as your friend and a Martian born, I ask you to do whatever you need to fix the problem.”
James was already in his EVA suit as a precaution, but he clicked a button on his arm control to use the suits air and not the habitats. The habitat consisted of 1,000 wheat plants that were due to be harvested any day. 700 hundred would be used for food where 300 would be reused to grow more crops. Shutting off the regulator for a short amount of time shouldn’t affect them. James was a mathematician and a very good one, he oversaw most major calculations for Mars. He calculated the routes to send probes from Mars to earth, the probes only ever consisted of Martian ore, through to calculating how much of each crop needed to be planted and harvested to ensure maximum energy and calories for the colonists.
He went to the Habitat control panel and disconnected it from the rest of the complex. A door in the middle of the air lock shut, if this habitat were to breach it wouldn’t affect the rest of the city. He also manually disconnected the solar panel cables with the flick of the switch, so this habitat would run on battery power. He turned off the regulator and pulled it apart, he found the tubing and duct taped it up. James put it back together and powered it back up. It seemed to hold for now.
He would leave it for twenty-four hours before switching it, it was holding at 1.2 atmosphere’s which wasn’t ideal but better than the 1.8 it had been at. When James opened the air lock, he heard a loud bang as the canvas ripped and the entire habitat breached, he was flung from the habitat and with the rest of the habitat thrown from its position. He smashed his helmet and ripped his EVA suit on the surface of mars and then went face first into the regulator.
The sirens rang throughout the Capital city into everyone’s EVA suit, the medical rover was just on time to rescue James, any longer he would have died because of decompression. There were four medical rovers on the surface of Mars and these were the only rovers that ran on solar power and hydrazine. They also had compressed air in a canister and could release it for additional acceleration if needed.
James woke up in the infirmary.  Laura was sitting next to him typing an email on her laptop. “Oh, James you’re awake, I’ll send for the nurse.” There was a button on the table next to James that she pushed. James had a blood drip going into him. “The Earth representatives and the boards aren’t too happy with you.”
“Why, because I tried to save the habitat without permission?” James himself felt fine, but was frustrated with the way the colony was run. People had been living on Mars for a hundred years. But Earth still controlled everything.
“Yes, they are upset that the 100th anniversary celebration was cancelled because of the incident. They also said you should have tried to communicate with earth.”
James got angered, “if I had the whole city could have breached, if they weren’t busy showing propaganda on the Charon, I could have asked an executive, also none of this would have happened if I could have installed the oxygenator first. But we aren’t allowed to unpack our supply probe till everything else is unpacked.” This had been an on ongoing issue for a while now, over the last few decades relations between Earth and Mars had grown strained.
“James I’m on your side. I really am, you should know that this afternoon the Director of the Colony called an emergency meeting, you have a court meeting tomorrow.”
“Wait how long was I unconscious?”
“Well the incident happened at 11:15am Mars time. It’s now 5:40pm, all the workers have gone home. The earth representatives went off duty 40 minutes ago.” The nurse came in with a glass of water, two slices of bread and a protein packet meal. She apologised for not having real meat but, they were in short supply.
The nurse asked to speak to Laura in private. “He is in no shape to work for at least a week. He has quite a big bump on his head, and it might
start swelling. I want to keep him in here for at least two days. Quite remarkably he hasn’t broken any bones, but he almost died of no oxygen and decompression, if he was an earth colonist he would have died, but because he is a Martian born the way his body behaves in Mars’ gravity and atmosphere is slightly different. I would strongly advise no mental exhaustion until at least Wednesday.”
“But he is due to have his hearing in the court room tomorrow.” That was the way it was, Earth’s way or no way.
“I will tell our dear Director Donald that he can stick the hearing where the sun doesn’t shine, it can wait till Wednesday. Look I know I’m an Earth colonist, but I’m on your side,
most of us are, it’s the company that are the problem.”
“I know, the men with deep pockets and business suits trying to run a scientific operation is stupid, why do they keep sending labourers not scientists?” Colonists arrived on Mars every 8 months, and supply probes arrived 4 months after a colonist mission arrived. For the last three years Earth had been sent labourers to work in the mines just outside the capital. The mines were for the Martian ore that was used on Earth.
“I heard that they only care about the ore we mine hear, apparently it goes for $5,000,000 for a kilo.”
“What are they using it for?” That was another thing that angered the Martians, they mined the ore for Earth and Earth wouldn’t even tell them what it was used for.
“I don’t know, look Laura go home if you want, I’ll keep an eye him, if he changes through the night, I’ll let you know.”
“If you don’t mind, I’d like to stay a while, he’s a close friend.” Laura walked back into the room and sat with James. “She is going to try and delay your hearing to Wednesday; you’re going to be fine.
But she wants you to stay in for a couple of days. I have something to cheer you up.” Laura pulled a small chocolate slab out of her pocket. It was wrapped and gold and had 320g written on the bottom.
“Where did you get that, we don’t have cocoa beans on Mars and Martian borns aren’t allowed it?” When it came to rations the Martian borns were first to miss out. Martian borns are classified as official Martian citizens, and colonists who had been there more than three years could become Martian residents. Martian citizens and residents were affected first, as to protect the colonists who as the Martian corps put it, are homesick and trying to adapt to new living environments, and they need to be helped through this hard time.
“Well I confiscated it because Martian borns are colonists of a sort therefore colonists aren’t allowed chocolate. Plus, why should earth be allowed it and not us.” They sat and ate it in silence. They had never eaten chocolate before, James and Laura liked the taste immediately. They sat and talked for a while. When 9 o’clock came the nurse said that Laura had to go home.




Chapter 2: The Hearing

James woke up the next morning at 9am, it wasn’t the sound of the nurses coming into work that woke him up, or the chefs, it was the sound of yelling outside, he asked the nurse what was going on. “With the exception of essential personnel everyone has gone on strike. They think it’s unfair that you have to go to a hearing when you were trying to save the colony. Laura authorised it.”
Not much else happened that day, but James was disturbed that one incident could easily divide the colony. Then again, it’s earths stupid rules that have caused it. As the day grew old, he got bored he asked the nurse for a laptop she agreed only if he was using it for fifteen minutes. Each section of the colony had a Wi-Fi router in it that connected to the Martian supercomputer, which was also connected into the main communication system.
Martian borns didn’t have much priority with using the Super computer unless it was major, the super computer was mainly reserved for the Earth colonists to send messages to their friends on Earth, and for the executives to communicate with Earth. Martian borns had to reserve time to use it, even then Earthlings got the higher priority. James was the only Martian born that had a high priority to use it. Because he did mass amounts of calculations including course calculations to send ore to earth and to calculate the number of calories needed to produce a day etc. He was the highest-ranking Martian born that could use the computer. He could even kick people of using it if he needed to, he could only kick Earth colonists off it if they had been using it for half an hour and he could only use it for one hour before being kicked off by an Earth colonist or Executive. The ranking system was quite strict.
Using the connection, he had managed to connect to the supercomputer. Basically, everything he did now on his laptop was sent straight to the supercomputer, his laptop acted as an interface to the computer. Not many people knew he was good at programming, but in the end, programming was just problem solving very much like maths. He wasn’t the best programmer or hacker on Mars, that was his friend John. Of course, the executives didn’t know he could program, or knew much about computers, nor did they know that he and Laura had a friend on Earth that worked for SatCon at NASA. Ever since the colony had found the Martian ore that was popular on Earth, relations had become strained between the Martian borns and the Earth colonists when the Martian colony started making mining the ore a priority.
Their friend on Earth kept them updated about what was really happening on Earth that the Executives hadn’t told them. James and Laura had found out that there had been five world wars in earth’s history, Mars officially only knew of three world wars. Their friend didn’t know exactly what the ore was used for, as that information on Earth was classified to the general public but knew of someone that did. James and Laura had never spoken to this person verbally only using Encrypted Emails. Well they had “officially spoken verbally” but they communicated in secret. James checked to see if there were any messages but there wasn’t. He typed the email then ran his program that encrypted the message. The program itself was stored on James’ laptop but it required the processing power of the supercomputer to run.
First the text was converted into a code they had created to communicate with, but they couldn’t just send the message without NASA and the Martian Corps finding out. So it would be integrated into the data dumps that were sent to Earth. Every 12 hours a 12 Terabyte dump of data would be sent to Earth, it would include amount of power that had been used that day, emails that colonists had typed, how many crops had been harvested etc. The message would be encoded into different areas in the data dump so a few essential files would be corrupted but easily repaired. When their friend ran the program on NASAs supercomputer it would send the encrypted email to his computer then he would figure out the code and read the email.
James told him everything that had happened, he knew that Laura wouldn’t have contacted him yet as she would have been busy. Laura came that evening after James had eaten. “How are you feeling?”
“They are making me stay tonight, in fact I am to be kept under observation for the rest of the week, but they are going to let me go to my hearing tomorrow, what’s with the rioters.”
“They are just sick of the way Earth treats us. Would you like a game of cards?” Laura winked when she said this. James knew what this meant. She was asking if he had communicated with their friend at SatCon, they didn’t know his real name but only knew him as Xander. They couldn’t talk about Xander in case someone was listening to the conversation, but he said yes. They played a game of Gin rummy for a few hours.
As James put his last card down and won the game he asked, “what time is my hearing tomorrow?”
“9am for the preliminary hearing, but it will probably continue until Friday.” Laura and James sat and talked for a while; he couldn’t believe that tomorrow he would be spending his 25th birthday in court.
The next morning James got taken to the room in a wheel chair. The court room was right next to the communications array and the supercomputer. The supercomputer alone had 63 solar panels dedicated to it and had 16 hydrazine generators to power it. It didn’t take much to cool it though, it just pumped air from outside to keep it cool, it took power to heat up the air from outside to a reasonably cool temperature that the computer could handle.
James was taken into the room. Director Donald was at the head of the table. He was the highest-ranking man on Mars, every time passengers came to Mars a new director would come to lead the colonists and was in charge of the operations. Laura had the next authority as she was director of the Martian born colonists, and what the colony needed in General. Also, in the room was Laura and two other executives. On a screen was an image of a judge from Earth. “The judge is from Canada and has been brought to NASA to oversee this trial and determine your outcome James. All communications are suspended while this trial takes place. All the processing power and communication lines are dedicated to this trial. We are relaying the transmission to Charon which is still in Orbit which transmits to the Demeter which has begun its return journey. Our message is relayed at the various satellites that are in between Earth and Mars. This results in video feed being a ten second delay.”
The judge began to speak. “Please read the card you are given and raise your left hand.”
James did as he was told. “I swear to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.”
“Your full name is James Alexander Singer, born on the 10th of July 2120 Mars time?”
James flatly said “Yes, your honour.”
“Did you disobey any orders given to you by Laura or Donald or any other executive?”
James let out a deep sigh “Well your honour I did, but in doing so I believe I saved the colony.”
“How does disobeying orders help the colony, you have endangered the colony?”
James struggled to keep emotion out of his voice, “your honour we have procedures in place that include rationing food. Basically, we dip into the food storage and use less crops harvested for consumption and use them to regrow more crops.”
“So, you admit to disobeying orders. But believe it was for the greater good of the colony?”
“Yes, because it would have taken 20 minutes at least to get a response from Earth, not accounting for Earth to check with superiors. The habitat was at 1.8 atmospheres. Which meant it risked blowing up at any minute, and risked decompressing the entire capital.”
“Ok, so apart from ignoring that one procedure, did you continue to follow everything else to the book?”
“Yes, your honour. I was wearing my EVA suit and I out right said my intent to my supervisor; I will say this I told her my intent and said I would disobey an order to clarify with Earth if she gave it so she is not to blame for this. But before attempting to fix the regulator I separated the air locks so the Habitat I was in was cut off from the rest of the capital air wise. I also disconnected from the main power grid and decided to run on battery power so as not to endanger the colony.” James didn’t want to get Laura in trouble as it wasn’t her fault, but you never knew what way words could be twisted.
“Did you make the repair as best as you could, following procedure not cutting corners?”
“Yes, your honour I did.”
“Yet it breached, are you qualified to make this repair.”
“No, your honour I’m not.”
Everyone in the room gasped “Then you were violating the code, a qualified engineer should have been making that repair. I wish to hear no more.”
Laura stood up in frustration “Objection your honour.”
The judge thought for a minute and looked over his glasses and said, “Go ahead.”
“No Engineers were available, we had been having this problem for a while, but the request to fix it has been over ruled, James would have known how to fix it with the parts that were sent to us, but we were not allowed to access the new parts. Because we weren’t allowed to unload our own supplies, because whenever colonists come we have to drop everything and make sure we have everything set up for when they arrive. We were only allowed to work on that on that day because it triggered an alarm, all engineers were busy sending your precious ore to the Demeter and all non-essential personnel were off duty because of the celebration, for us the 8th of July is a public holiday. We brought this up with our superior who said for us to deal with it.” The judge looked at Donald who just smiled and shook his head.
“We will take this into consideration; we will now hear the point of view from Donald.”
Donald stood up and spoke in a smooth charismatic voice. “Well because the Demeter was delayed getting supplies here, we had to get everything unpacked and ready more quickly for the new colonists.”
The judge looked at him and said, “get what ready?”
“Building new homes, unloading the food for the new colonists, getting the extra crops planted so we can grow more food. Building the new communal areas for the colonists, adding new oxygenators, etc. It is crucial we do all this before the colonists arrive.”
Laura stood up again “Objection your honour?” This was the longest 10 seconds of her life, if she could say that 15 extra colonists arriving wouldn’t have an immediate impact on the life style of the colony, there were communal areas for them to stay, also if there were problems with crops and other food they could easily ration. But she could only say this if her objection was approved.
“Over-ruled. I have heard enough, we will reconvene 4:30pm on Friday, Martian time.”
James and Laura were returned to the infirmary, to their surprise Donald came and said, “I have come to make a settlement out of court.” James motioned for him to keep talking. “Ok, the deal is you confess you were in the wrong, and that if you had clarified things with Earth. It would have been a lot easier. That you just had no way of being able to fix the problem and you’ll spend six months in the brig.”
James choked and said, “if I don’t like this deal and I decline?”
“Then you will probably be court martialled for life, look the judge is fair and he has requested transcripts of everything that happened leading up to the event and readings etc, that’s why the hearing is now on Friday. Also, if you take the deal, you will never be able to work with numbers and the super computer again and will spend the rest of your working career labouring.”
James leaned close and whispered so only he and Laura could hear “you can take your offer and shove it up your arse, now get out of my face before I make you leave.”
“Is that a threat mister Singer?”
“I don’t make threats, only promises.” With that Donald left. Laura sat with him for a while then James said he wanted some rest. He didn’t understand why he was on trial, yeah, he violated the regulations, but if he had waited to communicate with Earth it could have breached, and the whole city would have been compromised.
However, he had made several recommendations to the city designers on Earth, who planned how the buildings would be constructed and linked. He recommended that there were different sectors that were separated and ran on their own power and oxygenators. That way if there was a major breach it would only be in one sector. He also had requested time and time again an atmosphere dome like city Alpha two had. Basically, it was a big dome that would go over the entire city and have an atmospheric regulator to keep it inflated. But the idea was that if you grew trees in it and natural life you could go outside of a building without an EVA suit because you would have natural oxygen and semi natural heat. This idea kept getting declined. James had never understood why permanent buildings were constructed out of canvas and why Earth couldn’t send bricks and concrete for buildings. Martian Corps had said it was far too heavy and complex to send the materials and to have it air tight.
Laura was concerned as well, “have you heard from your relatives on earth?” which meant had they heard from Xander.
“Pass me my laptop I’ll check.” James checked the super computer, but it hadn’t received any data files since Tuesday morning, which was before the last data dump went out. “Nothing yet.”
Laura wanted to stay longer but she had to attend to the new colonists. They arrived on Monday, so they would be finished their inductions by now, she needed to make her speech and allocate them to the different jobs. She didn’t even know what resources she had got yet because Earth doesn’t send any information on the colonists until they arrived.
The rest of Wednesday was uneventful, Thursday was also uneventful, Laura couldn’t visit James on Thursday as she unexpectantly had to go to city Alpha two, they had finally managed to artificially grow a pig, they had been able to grow pork for ages with the proteins etc that earth sent them. They had one machine that acted as an incubator for animals, it took the embryos of a chicken, cow, and a pig. Each animal in the machine had the organic component to hold the animal, but they had trouble with reproducing lots of new animals.
Friday came, and James was told he would be released from hospital today. But was to spend the weekend relaxing at home, regardless of the outcome of the trial. James was taken back to the court room; it was the same judge and the same 10 second delay. “We have a couple more questions to ask you James to clarify a couple of things, then you will be excused from the court. Do you understand?”
“Yes, your honour.”
“If you had the time, and the delay was only ten seconds. Would you have communicated with Earth?”
James was confused with the question but answered anyway “Yes.”
“How?”
“There is a computer in the neighbouring Habitat that monitors the temperature of the crops etc. Its numbers are processed on the main supercomputer. I would have used that computer for emergency communication to send a basic ASCII text file to earth requesting permission to proceed, I would have done this because the delay time is smaller with text files.”
“If you had been told no what would you have done?”
“I would have turned off the atmospheric regulator, separated the airlock like I did. And then asked for an engineer to come and fix it for an emergency.”
“Why didn’t you do this in the first place?”
“Because I had been told to do the Job by one of the representatives.” James knew this was going badly.
“The atmospheric regulator is all three regulators in one, you would have endangered the crops.”
Again, James was confused, the Judge should know how things worked on Mars, or at least have reports to inform him of how the technology worked “It would have been fine for a few hours.”
The judge didn’t have a statement for that and said, “we will resume this session in five minutes.”
Donald came up to James and said, “can I get you anything?”
James fell for the trap and said, “coffee please.”
Donald smugly said, “oh I’m so sorry but coffee has gone into secondary reserve, meaning criminals like you, and students aren’t allowed coffee.”
“Innocent to proven guilty, fuck face.”
“Let it be known to the record that James has obstructed a superior officer by swearing and displaying aggressive attitudes.”
James sat down before he did anything else, the email was sent to the judge, and he would have received it pretty much straight away. The judges image reappeared on the screen. “James Alexander Singer, we have reached a verdict. Based on your aggressive attitude you are charged with, disobeying direct orders, endangering the colony, attempting to fix a job you weren’t qualified for, and for verbal abuse, you are to be court martialled, and will be put on tonight’s shuttle to the Charon which will leave orbit tomorrow. You will serve a life sentence on Earth.” James was escorted out straight away, but Laura remained seated.
Laura stood up from her chair quickly, “objection he can’t go to earth he will be crushed by the gravity and die. Also he is still under supervision from the hospital.”
“Fine he is to spend the rest of his life court martialled on Mars, keep him where you want for the weekend, he has to be in the brig by 9am Monday when the new board of directors come into power on Mars.”
With that they were dismissed Laura chased after Donald and caught up with him. “There’s got to be something you can do for him.”
“I’m sorry Laura but I am officially of duty, you will have to wait till Monday when the new director comes in. His induction should be finished now.” He handed her an envelope “that’s the list of the new colonists that have arrived.” Laura begun to object. “I’m sorry Laura but I am officially of duty now. The new director and the shareholders from earth will be having a meeting Monday morning.”
A day on Mars is 24 hours and 37 minutes so the Martian citizens standard working day was 8 hours 40 minutes “How can you be off duty, it’s 5:20, working days go to 5:40.”
“We earthlings can only handle 24 hours in a day and only can work 8 hours, we do work that extra twenty minutes to keep you satisfied. Now if you’ll excuse me, I have a shuttle to catch.”




Chapter 3: The meeting

Laura walked to her office and opened her locked draw, she took out the false bottom and took out a folder labelled plan I. Paper was rare on Mars, and was only used when necessary. However, Xander had been able to send her a few personal items. Laura then strolled to the brig where there were two guards, they were Martian borns, and she knew them quite well. “I was told I can take him away for the weekend if I wished, the hospital wants him to relax, I’ll be sure to have him back Monday morning.”
“Sure, look we are on duty Monday so if you’re a little late doesn’t matter.”
Laura had the folder in her back pack with her other work items, “sounds like a plan.” As she said the word plan, she scratched her eye and winked. They smiled and took her to James’ cell. “Come on James you don’t have to stay here for the weekend, but you are supposed to be under supervision.”
“Where am I supposed to go? I am not going back to the infirmary, and I’m not allowed to return to my quarters.” Most people living on Mars lived in allocated flats, families then lived in homes if a couple was married, or had gone through the Martian breeding program. James had his own personal quarters because he was a high-ranking Martian citizen.
“You can come and crash at my place for the weekend." They left the brig and arrived at Laura’s house, it wasn’t exactly a house, it was a small habitat that had two bedrooms, cooking area and bathroom. Most home Hab’s were like this on Mars, but some had four or more bedrooms usually for flatting, although there was no currency. When you reached 18 and left school, you left your family home and were allocated to a flat.
Laura went to the fridge and pulled out a glass bottle and offered it to James. “Xander managed to send it for you, it’s that cider you like.” James took it, he appreciated it as cider was a rare treat on Mars, they sat on an inflatable couch, most chairs and couches were inflatable and collapsible because of weight.  “You alright?”
James opened the cider took a gulp. “As well as I can be, have you talked to my parents?”
“An official email would have been sent to them, after the incident though they needed a break from each other, so I have your dad on the North pole base, the pumps have been struggling up there. Your mother is at Alpha city two. Earth sent more worms to be introduced into the gardens. I have a meeting Monday morning, I have my speech prepared.” She put emphasis on the word I.
“Thank you, anyway with new supplies there should be more tv shows and movies on the server.” They had a public server that TVs and laptops could access for movies and tv shows from Earth. The News was never sent, which had not escaped notice.
“Yeah but it’s all the 21st century stuff, they sent more 1980s stuff as well, hardly anything modern.” Laura turned on the TV anyway.
“Yeah because most of their things were based around what happened during the world wars we’re not supposed to know about. What episode of the feature series are you up to? I still need to watch the last episode of season five.”
“Well let’s put it on, it’s a good place to end as well, even though the show continued. James I’m going to do everything I can to keep you out of the brig.” James thanked her, she pushed play and a 1970s song started playing as the show started playing what happened that season. James and Laura were close friends and had been ever since they were kids, they sat huddled together on the couch, as the heating was being cut down due to a dust storm effecting the solar panels efficiency. James knew that the new Colonists would be in a comfy home now, with heaters going at full power.
After the episode Laura checked her laptop “James something here from Xander.” She read it out “I’m sorry to hear how events have panned out, NASA not happy with the Mars company, however the transaction took place today. Martian corporation officially owns NASA if you are ever going to go with plan I, do it soon. I have everything prepared at my end. The Charon here has been delayed, same with the Demeter. I see the Charon at Mars is preparing to leave tomorrow morning, it’s astonishing the men in suits are going to work on the weekend. What colonists did you get? Sent at 5:50pm, data dump going out in 5 minutes. Shit James I forgot to tell you what colonists I got. 18 people came, 15 to stay. I got five people who had been drawn from a lottery who haven’t had any real training for anything. They are to be put to use up here for repairing things. Ten Labourers to work in the mine who have been training for five years straight. They told me this would happen once in every three arrivals, it’s happened for the last five.”
“Well that’s annoying, reply to Xander and tell him we
are going forward with it, it’s 6:20 data dump goes out at 7pm, should be long enough to encrypt the message, also tell him thanks for the cider and ask, is earth fucked or something because we keep getting labourers and lottery winners. Do you think this will upset the other colonists that have been here for years?”
“Nah, the residents and citizens are on the same side, even though they are from Earth, they’ve experienced as much hardship as us and understand our frustration.”
The rest of the weekend was pretty much uneventful, the Charon left orbit on Saturday morning, it was always accelerating and would arrive at Earth in eight months. James sent an email to his parents; each city had a central computer that had massive data cables running from city to city on top of the pipe network. James and Laura didn’t talk about what would happen on Monday, and spent the weekend catching up on the other things that had happened. James wasn’t allowed to leave the house technically, but his friends came and talked to him. Over the weekend all the Martian citizens and residents knew that plan I was to be put in action Monday morning. None of the representatives or colonists knew about it and didn’t suspect anything was going on.
Monday came, Laura went to the meeting. James went to the brig but didn’t go to the cell. The three new Earth representatives were sitting around the table. The board of investors was on the screens around the room. This was the most important meeting of Laura’s career, she had been in this meeting plenty of times, meeting the new Directors, but this was her most important. Little did they know that this meeting would change the fate of Earth and Mars.
“Ah Laura, glad you could join us, I’m Director Dave, these are my associates Derek and Ross. Now let us get down to business.” For the next half an hour they went over the basics, how much food they had, how long that would last, the rations the colony should be on, how much water was being sent from the North Pole, and how much water could be pumped from the underground lake at the Capital. Finally, it was time for Laura to give her speech. Today was a special one. Dave spoke to her first before she could start her speech “We understand you believe James should be released.”
“Yes.”
Dave sighed and looked at her for a moment. She didn’t give any emotion. “Well we can’t authorize that, sorry, we may be able to get him labouring for one week a month, that weekend after he labours, he can spend a weekend at a flat or outside the brig if he is supervised. What do you say to that?”
“Well thanks for the offer but I’ll decline. I would like to make a speech.” They motioned for her to continue, the rest of the people had been so preoccupied with the meeting they hadn’t noticed what was happening outside, which was nothing, no one was at their posts doing what they were supposed to do, the labourers for mining hadn’t shown up, only the colonists who were against the Martians were working. Laura stood up and begun her speech. “First of all, may I ask what the Martian ore is actually used for on Earth?”
“No, you may not.”
Laura continued “that is part of the issue I want to address. We are kept in the dark. It is us that mine the ore, and we don’t know why we’re doing it because it is classified. 100 years ago, when the colonization began, it was to expand our horizons, to ensure humanities survival. Earth would send our supplies, and we would try and be self-sufficient before the 100-year anniversary. Well that hasn’t happened we still rely on what you send us.
“Technology used to advance very quickly, but that slowed down. Because all the focus was on the Mars programme. Our technology got better on Earth and Mars, but not advancing as quickly as it used to and needed to. Everything was being put in to make sure that we could survive on our own. But that hasn’t happened, because ten years after colonization we found the ore. Which is the only thing Earth has been interested in for the last few decades.
“Now all priority lies with colonists arriving, we have to unpack their luggage before we can get the supplies we need. Every decision we make must be clarified by Earth.” Laura was starting to get angry and it was showing but she continued with her speech, “only when it’s meetings like this, or for court are we actually allowed to be in real time communication with Earth. Otherwise it takes a minimum of twenty minutes to get a response.
“We spend our time trying to please and follow orders from people that are on average 225 Million kilometres away, and we try and please their colonists. Which these days are people with high school qualifications, muscles and lottery winners. Anyone can come and go from Earth as they wish, give us orders and expect us to do anything they want. Yet not a single Martian born can go to Earth otherwise they get crushed by Earth’s Gravity.
“What I’m saying is, we want to make our own decisions. We want independence. What I propose is that the people of Mars make their own decisions. We elect our own leader. We would continue trading with Earth, we trade you the ore. Earth actually send us the supplies we ask for, including the brain power we ask for.” Laura handed out to the people in the room the treaty she proposed. “A pdf has been sent to your email as well for those that are on earth. What do you say?”
Dave looked at the treaty and said, “if we refuse to sign?”
“Sign or don’t sign. we are done taking orders from you?” The investors on the screens said to Dave not to sign then disappeared from the screen.
Dave talked with his associates for a minute then said. “We refuse to sign, we also agree that you are emotionally compromised, due to your friend being put in the brig, and you are unable to represent the citizens of this colony, we relieve you of your duty.” Dave pushed a button on the table they were sitting around and said, “security please escort Laura to the brig.” The only response was the sound of someone hitting their head on the ground. He tried again “security.”
A team of four people came into the room, James was one of them dressed up in the security uniform, the representatives in the room didn’t know what he looked like, they had only read the report, and spent the rest of the week getting inducted and trained to survive on Mars. Dave said, “please escort the incapable disrespectful leader from here to the brig.”
“With pleasure.” James went up and handcuffed Dave. “If you and your associates would like to follow me to the brig that would be wonderful.” James saw the light from the ceiling reflect off something silver. Derek had pulled out a small hand-held pistol from his pocket and was slowly aiming it at Laura. James reacted quickly and threw two knifes killing Derek and Ross. “Boys take our guest here to the brig will you, make sure that he has my old cell you know, the one with no window, and the broken light would you. Mars plan I for independence has now being put into effect, you know what to do.” What the investors didn’t know is that everything that had transpired in the meeting was broadcast to every single laptop, tablet and television on Mars. Everyone had planned for this. They hoped the plan wouldn’t be put into action, and that the treaty would be signed, however they had known it would happen. The Martian war of Independence had begun.




Chapter 4: The cut off

James had an idea about how the colonists had firearms. There were several industrial 3D printers on Mars that could 3D print metal. He checked the records and saw that high-ranking members had printed guns and bullets, because they were high ranking no alarm was triggered for printing firearms in space. The bullets didn’t use gun powder but compressed air to fire.  The colonists that sided with the Martians gave fire arms to some of the Martians. Having firearms in space where a missed shot could endanger the colony was stupid. The Earth colonists had taken twenty Martians hostage, but the Martians had fought back, and those colonists were put in the brig. In every single piece of software on the colony was a small software patch, that patch had activated when the war began, cutting everything off from earth. It was the day the war began, but the Martians were prepared. It was late afternoon and 15 colonists were in the brig. Laura and James were having lunch when she got a call on her communicator; all ranking members had one, requesting to go to the communications complex, where all satellites and communications with earth were handled.
The person who had requested it was John, Laura and James arrived, and he spoke straight away. “Do you remember five years ago that meteor crashed in the southern hemisphere?”
James replied “yeah I remember working out it was at the south pole, that got me put in charge of mathematical equations, instead of labouring. Wait I remember we asked to see the meteor, but Earth refused to let us adjust satellites to see it, we weren’t allowed to do anything about it, they were really persistent about that.”
Laura recalled as well “that’s right then they got the Charon to take a photo for us and sent it to us. Why do you ask?”
“Well I cut our satellites off from Earth, meaning I have complete control over everything so this morning. I programmed two satellites to look over our southern hemisphere, and take a few photos. I just received them; do you also remember we saw traces of other meteor activity after that.” They both nodded. “This is the image I got back.” James and Laura both gasped. The image showed approximately 20 solar cells on the pole all connected to a central complex. They also saw the meteors were split open. He flicked to another picture which showed a rover attached to the central complex. Another image zoomed in, showed that it had three separate things connected to it, water reclaimer, oxygenator, and atmospheric regulator. “It’s another base, I don’t know who it is, but I think it’s planned by the Martian company.”
James looked closely and said “makes sense. That would explain why they weren’t fussed about us not working, and asking for independence. It must be kept top secret though.” John looked at James inquiringly and Laura nodded in approval. “For the last five years, I have been communicating with someone on Earth, he’s a double agent if you will. Laura found out the double agent three years ago when she became in charge of the Martian borns. The messages go out with the data dumps, but are heavily encrypted, then put into other files in the super computer, so no one can find them. We know him as Xander, he’s in charge of SatCon at NASA so it must be top secret.”
John looked at the images then said, “unless it wasn’t NASA, remember up until the Mars company bought NASA, they were actually separate companies. The company just contracted NASA to make the rockets and send supplies, they oversaw Astronaut training as well, but the Martian company was a separate organisation, always has been. It’s possible they contracted a secondary base with another space agency.  I think they are a lot more primitive than us; I can’t see any signs of commercial 3D printers like we have or anything. It’s more like a first contact base, for a team to survey and see if it’s suitable to stay there.”
Laura sighed “thanks for this information John, James I think we need to go to a live broadcast tonight. Come clean with the Martian colony, we tell them everything, also we tell them we need to send an expedition to the South pole. James, I need you to calculate how much fuel it would take to get their if we sent a shuttle, and how much we would need to get back with extra people if we needed. Also try and work out the maximum amount of people that would be able to live in the area. I’m giving you full access to the super computer; can you use it to send an email directly to Xander without the cloak and dagger and without it being seen.” James nodded. “John send all images you have received to James’ private drive. I want you to programme all satellites to do full orbits of this planet to see if there are any other bases we don’t know about. Does Earth know we have seen this.”
“Not that I’m aware, I cut them off completely, they don’t receive updates from satellites or any other information. I have tried bouncing signals around and found three satellites we didn’t know were there, they haven’t seen us look at the south pole yet, do you want me to hack into them as well?”
“Make us see what they see, but let Earth think they remain in control, we don’t want them to know we have found this out, try and keep our satellites out of orbit of Earths, if they try and steal our satellites, cut them off. Can you hack into the Charon and Demeter?”
“Done, what do you want them to do.”
“Programme them to return to Mars the moment no one is on them, when they are in Earth’s orbit, change the frequency used to communicate with them, lock them out so they can’t control them. The ones that are currently at Earth, monitor but leave untouched. Right people you know what to do. James I’ll meet you in the meeting room at 5pm, John I want an update at 4:45 please. I’m going to go and talk to Dave and see if he knew about the other base.”
James did what he was told and went and made all the calculations necessary. He emailed Xander and got a reply within the hour. James I’m sorry about what has happened. I’ve looked at all of NASA’s records time and time again and it never mentions another colony. The Martian company only started the process of purchasing NASA last year so they indeed could have contracted another agency to do it. Also, the Charon and Demeter haven’t launched from Earth yet but are still being loaded.
Laura sat Dave down in the interrogation room. “I’m not going to beat around the bush here. Did you know about the Base on the south pole? If so, what is it and who occupies it?”
Dave just sat there and said, “I want a Lawyer.”
Laura pushed a button on the desk and spoke into the intercom. “Could any lawyer wanting to represent Dave please come to the brig.” No reply. “Oh, that’s right fuck head, Earth wouldn’t allow lawyers here would they. So as long as they got their precious ore, they don’t care about us, which we’ll come to in a minute.” Laura enjoyed the freedom of speech she otherwise hadn’t had before. She pulled a medium sized hammer out from a draw on her side of the table and smacked it against the fingers on Dave’s right hand. “Don’t make me ask again.”
“I didn’t know they had gone through with it. It was a plan about 10 years ago to create a secondary base just in case an event like this happened. No space agency would accept it. Eventually New Australia were going to launch it for us, but they pulled out at the last minute.”
Laura was confused, “New Australia?”
“Right of course that information was classified wasn’t it. In the late 2040s Australia replaced its prime minister three times in one year. New Zealand was also not doing that well financially, both countries were doing poorly, so the two countries joined into one. Brisbane was the capital for the whole nation, but Australia and New Zealand still had their smaller governments to handle matters
in their areas, but the law and currency was the same throughout the nation.” Laura felt shocked, how much information was classified, what secrets had earth kept, if the formation of New Australia happened over a hundred years ago, what else were Earth keeping secret, and why would earth keep that secret, relations were good in the 2040s, or so history suggested.
“Now for the most important question, why were the 4th and 5th world war classified, and what is the Martian ore used for on earth?”
Dave just start laughing and said, “you’ll have to figure that one out yourself, remember anyone that dies up here now is on your hands.” He continued laughing as white foam started bubbling from his mouth, Laura screamed in frustration, but it was too late, Dave had bitten a hidden suicide capsule.
Meanwhile James had performed most of his calculations and found the most efficient path to fly from the Northern hemisphere to the southern hemisphere on Mars. He went to John and sat at one of the computer terminals. “This is the most efficient path for whoever needs to get there. The engineers can have the ship loaded by Thursday. I need to know what the orbits of the satellites will be so that Earths satellites don’t detect the ship.”
“That shouldn’t be a problem it looks like earth are positioning them at our hemisphere, I can patch our satellite feed into their satellites using archival footage from our satellite so that they won’t see the launch.”
“Sounds good, John, say now we’re at war, you reckon we’ll be able to grab a beer later?” James and John and Laura had been friends since the Martian equivalent of Kindergarten, they always stood up for each other, and had each other’s backs. James and John had been friends since the equivalent of high school.
“Yeah some of the Earth citizens probably have some beer hidden somewhere.”
At that moment Amber came into the room. Amber was an earth colonist and had been here for around six years. She had won the lottery on Earth. She was in the Martian school, as she hadn’t finished when she won the lottery on Earth, and had to leave high school early for astronaut training. She had an internship and worked as an assistant in the Martian satellite room straight after school. She had seemed happy to support the Martians. She came up to John and James, John’s face turned red. “James, Laura has asked me to tell you that Dave is dead, suicide pill. She requests both your presence in the morgue urgently.”
John and James went to the morgue and along the way James said, “you should ask her out, now that we aren’t obeying the rules Earth set us you don’t need to go into the ‘breeding programme’ to date her.”
John blushed again “Yeah when the war’s over maybe.” They continued walking to the morgue and when they got their Laura told them exactly what had transpired. John said, “Laura it’s not your fault.”
She looked at Dave’s Dead body. “That may be so but he’s right, anyone that dies up here is on me.”
James put his hand on her shoulder and said “we all volunteered to follow you if it ever came to this. Its Earths fault for treating us like this, we never wanted a war, we just want to be treated fairly.” John nodded in agreement.
“Your absolutely right. I think tonight when we tell the colony about Xander. We don’t say how we know him, who we know him as or where on Earth he works, or how we communicate with him, or even where the double agent is. In case the colonists have a way to communicate with Earth we don’t know about.” Laura pulled James’ laptop from her bag and gave it to him; it had been confiscated earlier that morning. “Can you access all the work you’ve done today from that?”
“Yeah, I uploaded it to my drive on the Martian cloud, I’ll email it to you now. Basically, the best time to launch is on Friday morning, it’s doable
to get our long-range prototype explorer working. It should take twelve hours to get to the other base, but whoever goes shouldn’t land at the base maybe twenty kilometres away from it and drive there in a small rover. They should spend no more than three hours at the base, otherwise we risk being seen by Earth’s satellites. We don’t want them to know we have discovered the base in case they have other bases on Mars we don’t yet know about.”
Laura looked at him and said, “and who do you think should go on this mission, and how many people should we send to this other base.”
“Only one person, based on my calculations and the amount of fuel available. We can only afford to send one person. I recommend myself and John can monitor the mission from here.”
Laura looked at James worryingly. “Why should I send you James, it’s a risky job.” Laura was hesitant about sending James, they were close friends, always had been, it was unprofessional to let personal feelings get involved, but she was only human, despite what Earth thought.
“While I use a lot of computing power to do my calculations, I can do them in my head, I use computers just to store them and because it’s quicker. If anything happens during travel, we don’t get high enough altitude or fuel leaks, I’m the quickest at making the necessary calculations to safely land. Also, if there are more people at the base, or less than we suspect. then new calculations will need to be made.” 
Laura considered it for a minute then said “ok I’ll send you on the mission. When do you need to leave and how many people do you think are on that base?”
“Friday, and I estimate that there are no more than five people on that base also we’ll need…”
James didn’t get to finish his sentence as an alarm blurted throughout the entire city. They could here all the airlocks being sealed, and a robotic voice echoed throughout the city “Decompression, please stay in your relative area.”
James felt something touch the back of his neck and a smooth voice said, “Don’t move or that oversized head of yours will be blown everywhere.”




Chapter 5: The Mission

James, Laura and John were still in the morgue with a gun held to James’ head. Five other armed men were in the room. The man that held a gun to James’ head said, “bloody Martian borns don’t know how to follow orders. If you had kept Earth happy this never would have happened.”
Laura said defensively and kind of rudely “if Earth had given us the shit we actually needed, and treated us like humans we would have had a better relationship with Earth. But no, you people never change, your just racist, useless, idiots that don’t care about the welfare of the colony, we’re just your slaves and we won’t stand for that.”
The man fired three shots at Laura, all three hit her. One in each leg and the other in her shoulder. “Mouth of like that again, the next one will be in your head.”
James had figured out that this guy was supposed to be the new person in charge, if something happened to the director. He must be a new colonist because I don’t know him, but he has some authority. Using his peripheral vision, he could see that he had a pistol strapped to his leg. The man had pulled James closer and was holding his gun to the side of his head. James quickly lashed out with his hand, pulled the trigger of the gun that was in the holster, he had managed to angle it, just so it hit the man in the foot. He grabbed the gun from the holster grabbed the other one out of the man’s hand, and shot two of the other men in the legs. He threw one of the guns to John then held the other gun to the man’s head. He spoke to the other gunmen “move and your boss gets it. My friend here will shoot you a little higher than where your other colleagues were shot. Now drop your weapons.” They did as he said. “What set of the alarm?”
The man replied, “I don’t know.” James shot him in the other foot, he pointed the gun in between his legs, pulled the hammer on the back of the gun back. “Alright, alright it’s a false alarm, we knew all three of you were in here, so we activated the alarm and locked you three out of the system to trap you guys.”
James dragged him over to a computer terminal and said “lift the lockdown and let us back in.” There was a computer in all the main rooms of the complex, most of them just tablets on the wall. But places like morgues and the infirmary had proper desktop computers for medical reports and access to air locks and generators in case of an emergency.
“I don’t have access from this terminal”. James pushed the barrel of the gun up against his groin with his finger on the trigger. “Ok, ok I’ll do it just let me sit down please.” James let him sit down. John had taken the guns from the other men, and tied them up. The siren stopped, and the man said, “there it’s done.” James whacked him on the back of the head and he fell unconscious.
James spoke into the intercom next to the morgues entrance and said, “Emergency medical team to the morgue please.” He grabbed a first aid kit from the nearest airlock and rushed over to Laura. “Are you alright, stay awake.” He positioned her, so she was comfortable. John took off his Jacket and gave it to James to put under Laura’s head.
Amber came into the Morgue and said, “what on Mars happened here?” James had lost awareness of what was around him and lost consciousness.
 When James woke up Amber was sitting beside him “you fainted because of the shock, also it would appear that the lunch you were having had been drugged, just as well you never finished it, you and Laura would have passed out a lot sooner. Laura is asleep but she’s fine, but she’s going to need an electric wheel chair for a while.”
James said looking around still drowsy, “what time is it?”
“Seven o’clock, you were unconscious for a few hours. John made the announcement about your spy, and about the other base. It’s been a long day for you James, so we are keeping you overnight.  You can go back to your quarter’s tomorrow, after you’ve seen Laura. Does John know how you found out about Xander?”
James took a minute understand what was being said. “No, I didn’t tell him about us either. What of the men, and who’s on who’s side here?”
Amber smiled. “The men that attacked you, are in the infirmary, then will go to the brig. Essentially anyone that has full Martian citizenship or residency, the ones that have been here longer than three years all have struggled in times of hard ship. The colonists are on another side, some are trying to cause trouble, others are just keeping to themselves.”
A nurse came in and said that Amber had to go. She brought in a tray of food, and a drink for James “have this then you must get some sleep.”
James went and saw Laura the next day, “they are keeping me for a few more days, your mission is scheduled for Friday morning, I’ll let you organize it.”
Tears fell from James’ eyes “I’m sorry I didn’t want any of this to happen.”
Laura just smiled and said “it’s not your fault, this war was bound to happen sooner or later. They’re not going to let me do much, in fact they won’t even let me use my laptop for anything, they’ve given me one that can only access the media server. Until I get out of here, you and John are in charge.”
For the following week there were a few small instances with the colonists but nothing major. James went and saw Laura as often as he could. She was released on Thursday night. James stayed at her place that night to make sure she was ok. The nurse had said that she would be able to walk again in six or so weeks, but till then she had to use the electric wheel chair. Laura had insisted that James still went on his mission to the South Pole and that she would be alright.
Friday morning came. It was 8:45 am. Five minutes before the launch. He would stay at the base for no longer than 13 hours. He had food and supplies with him for his journey. Also supplies if anyone at the base needed it. It would take 12 hours to get there. 12 hours to get back. 13 hours intended to stay there; he couldn’t rest in either flight times. He planned to land 20 kilometres from the base, sleep for an hour then drive in a small vehicle. It was a motorbike specifically designed to run on Mars, but the rider had to wear an EVA suit, there was a side car, so there was room for one passenger on the way back. There was also space in the sidecar, under the seat for some supplies.
He heard Johns voice on his comm system, “how are you James?”
“All good, where’s the whole countdown and go flight checklist shit?”
“This isn’t the 21st century James, we’re more sophisticated than that now, also this isn’t the movies, well if you’re ready away you go.”
Laura quickly interrupted, “wait, good luck James.”
“Cheers, I’ll be in radio range the whole time. Ok enough procrastination, see ya later.” He pushed a big red button, and he took off like a spaceship. When he got to the top of his launch just as he was coming into orbit the rocket levelled out, so it was more like a plane. It would use the orbit and the gravity of Mars to help get to the South Pole, but it did have its own fuel to propel it like a jet engine as well. He reached Mars orbit, and could see three satellites that were positioned over a different part of Mars, but getting closer to it and said, “John looks like Earth is trying to crash their satellites into each of the three bases we have up here. Do your magic and adjust their routes will you.”
A few minutes later John replied, “they will each crash 5 kilometres east of their targets.”
“Cheers John, everything looks good from up, here I’m on route to the South Pole. Glad I brought a good book to read.”
The ship didn’t have auto pilot, but if you pointed it in the direction you wanted it to go, it went in that direction. It was compulsory for everyone who lived on Mars, colonist and Martian born to read a book, it was over 100 years old and fiction, but it was relevant about what dangers were on Mars and what could go wrong. The ship described in that book was what the Charon and Demeter ships had been based off. James had read it several times but liked the humour and story of it.
His journey was uneventful, and he landed 12 hours after the launch. He shut down all systems, slept for 45 minutes then he drove to the base.
When he arrived, he saw a person, male or female he could not tell, in an EVA suit was rewiring and repairing something in a rover. The person saw him, but they could not communicate. James had anticipated this and drew in the sand just a number with MHz beside it, the frequency for the person to contact him on. The person adjusted the frequency on his arm piece.
A male’s voice came through his head set, it was a strong southern accent. “Crikey, who are ya mate and what are you doing out here in the wop wops?”
A New Australian, “My name is James Singer, I come from the main base in the northern hemisphere, I mean you no harm, and just wanted to come and talk. What is your name?”
“Names Steve Irvine, come in mate you sound exhausted, I got a supply probe just yesterday, so we can crack open a cold one if you want.”
James wasn’t use to the strange language, “what?”
“Beer.”
“Oh.” They went inside the base and took off their EVA suits. James was astonished to see that there were five bunks over in one room, but there was no one else in the base. The place was a mess and looked more like a person’s house than a scientific base. “Where’s the rest of your crew?”
Steve grabbed a couple of beers out of the fridge, and put a couple of pies in the microwave. “There were five of us, but the rest died, two of an accident and the other two of starvation. Two and a half years ago we had a faulty air lock, and it shot itself out from the habitat, the airlock crashed into a big rock, and fair dinkum, tore through the airlock smashed two of me mates’ helmets and now they’re gonski. All our crops were destroyed, another probe was already on route, but it had very little food, but enough to plant and regrow more food. But it wasn’t enough, the company sent us another probe, but never enough food, they just didn’t care. The first one to cark it died about a year ago, the last one to die was about 6 months ago, I just about died but the probe came, and it had nothing but food, so I’ve grown my own food ever since. I get the odd probe here and there, but I don’t do anything for the bunch of bastards running the show on Earth. So, what brings you here mate?”
James couldn’t understand why anyone would wear shorts and Jandals on Mars, and especially on the South Pole, but he didn’t say anything. He was finding it hard to understand what Steve was saying but he got the gist of it, he told Steve all about the Martian war of independence. And everything that had happened over the last couple of weeks. “Look if there’s nothing here for you. Come back with me to the capital, we can grow our own food for the most part, the capital is growing more and more food, such as wheat, potatoes but not as well as city Alpha two, with your crops it could really boost our economy, and we would have to rely less on supplies from Earth.”
Steve seemed interested, he skulled his beer and devoured his pie before he replied. “How much can I bring with me from here?”
“I had expected five people here, and made sure I had enough fuel for the five extra people. And an extra 5 kilograms of luggage each.  So as long as the base is left here, you can bring most of your belongings except the oxygenator and atmospheric regulator etc. Also, can we take your rover back to my shuttle and back to the capital?”
“Sure, let’s get started.” It took them a couple of hours to load up the rover, they had to make two trips to and from the shuttle, however in the end they had loaded everything. They were able to bring all of Steve’s personal belongings, all the food in the base, all the laptops and desk tops of the other crew members, a few small things such as drills and shovels they took as well. When everything was loaded, they were going to shut down all the computers and disassemble the base when Steve said, “lets scare those bastards on Earth aye.”
James was intrigued. “What did you have in mind?”
“Open all the air canisters, and set this thing to keep building up the pressure till she pops.”
“Sounds like a plan.” So, they calibrated it to pop within the hour. They were on the shuttle ready to launch. “Sit back and relax Steve we’ll be at the capital soon.”
“So, James are you Martian born. Or are you the first of your family here on the big red dot?”
“My great grandfather was one among the crew of the first colonists to permanently live on Mars. His daughter was the first person born on Mars. He had three children, one boy and two girls.  I’m a descendant of the first daughter that was born. I know it doesn’t matter but I always wondered what nationality I’m descended from, because I know the Martian company started in Australia.”
“Your grandmother isn’t alive to tell you?”
“She died giving birth to my father, he doesn’t talk to the other two, but I know the name of the daughter was Penny.”
“Ah that helps, it’s well known that the first person to give birth to Mars was called Christine, her and her Husband Arnold named their child Penny, Arnold was from New Zealand. Christine was from Australia. So, you are descended from New Zealand and Australia, of course these days it’s all the one country.” James felt a sense of pride; he now knew where he and his family had originated from on Earth.
“So, what about you Steve what made you want to come to Mars?”
“Well I was part of the New Australian Navy as a pilot. I was the best pilot in the Navy. I could fly anything from the latest fighter jets to the old spit fires. I helped design a lot of new planes as well. I was testing a new plane, taking it for the first ever flight, well its engine used more fuel than what was expected. It ran out of fuel and crashed in the middle of the outback. I had no food, no water, my radio didn’t work. Bottom line was all I had was what was left of the wreckage. I survived six months in the outback by myself with no navigation, my plane didn’t have a compass as that was considered primitive. I eventually found a small town and was rushed to safety, after the doctors had done their three million checks my commanding officer and some bugger from Martian corps came to visit me and said if I could survive that long by myself, I would be perfect to lead the deep explorer mission on Mars. They had told us that we would be the back up to the current colony.” James sensed a bit of regret in Steve’s voice, he thought he could trust him, but he was still officially an employee of Martian corps. They kept talking for the whole trip which was uneventful.
When they came back to the Capital, they couldn’t see the earth satellites. They landed, and John came up to James and said, “get inside, I have some colonists wanting to redeem themselves ready to unload the shuttle, we need to talk.” After they got inside, James and Steve had gotten out of their EVA suits, John sat them down at the same table James had his hearing at. Laura was there as well, and quickly brought Steve up on the things he needed to know. Then John said, “and here’s the bad news, not long after you left James, there was an incident at city Alpha two, one of their habitats breached.”
“Was anyone hurt, what was it agricultural? What caused it?” The room fell silent and there was a grim expression on Laura and John’s face.
Laura spoke next “we don’t know if anyone was hurt, hopefully because of the environmental dome everything is ok. But James, we’ve lost all contact with city Alpha two and the northern base. All water and supply chains have been cut off from us. We just received this message before you landed, we haven’t seen it yet.” James understood the grim expressions, if we’ve been cut off from both that can only mean a siege.
On the tv a message began to play. A man appeared on the tv but was completely covered in black, so his face couldn’t be seen. A voice could be heard “attention Capital of Mars, this is the new leaders of city Alpha two. We the colonists, the important people of this mission, have taken this city and the Polar base as hostage. We have cut you off, your precious Martian borns will be fed but kept as slaves. We have explosives; yes earth sent them with us, placed at each track coming from the Capital. Try anything and you’ll all blow up. No one was killed in that breach, that was just to get your attention. Our demands are simple, surrender to complete control of Earth, and you will be spared, your leaders will be kept in the brig for the rest of their lives but that’s it. If you try contacting anyone in anyway, or try anything a hostage will be executed, oh and just so you know when you started playing this file it transmitted itself to every screen in the capital. To prove we mean business watch this.” A middle-aged woman came into the screen, she was crying and had obviously been beaten. James looked terrified. He couldn’t watch, as he saw his mother on the screen. The man spoke again. “To confirm surrender or negotiate we have sent you a file through the cable. Essentially a shared editable document so us Colonists can communicate with the leader of the capital. Every week you don’t surrender a hostage will die.” There was a gunshot and James’ mother fell to the floor dead.
“NOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!” James screamed but he knew it was too late. The message had been pre-recorded. His mother was dead. That was the last thing James remembered before he woke up in the infirmary.




Phase 2: Earth strikes back





Chapter 6: The plan

Corbett was monitoring the computer and looking at old images from the satellites around Mars. Earth had been cut off from Mars but he still analysed the photos, he made himself look busy, so his superiors and supervisors wouldn’t pay too much attention to him. On Earth he was known as Corbett Reid, on Mars he was known as Xander. He was on the side of the Martians and understood what they wanted, and why they were frustrated but he couldn’t voice his opinions without risk of suspicion.
He was very cunning and charismatic, all the people on Earth trusted him and he learnt things that most of the civilians on Earth didn’t know. The Martian War of Independence had been going on for a week now and the rest of Earth didn’t know about it.
When Martian Corps had bought NASA a lot of people had lost their jobs, Corbett had retained his job and handled anything to do with satellites. Now, he handled anything to do with orbits and making sure the positions of all ships, satellites and probes were in their correct positions. The only thing that he hadn’t been told was what the Martian ore was used for but he was very close to figuring that out. But he was unsure and he knew it was Martian corps biggest source of income, they received approximately two tonnes every eight months, each kilo sells for $5,000,000. Corbett’s work was interrupted when Franklin, the CEO of Martian corps came in and asked to see Corbett in his office.
Franklin and Corbett were friends, or that’s what Corbett lead Franklin to believe, they had known each other since kindergarten. Franklin’s parents were wealthy, essentially bought their way into everything. Corbett had to get accepted into society based on his personality, had to get jobs based on his skill, not his wallet.
Corbett followed him to his office and was seated. Franklin offered him a drink, but he refused. “Corbett, they found out about the Southern pole base, what do you know about it?”
“Just that it was a proposed project by Martian Corps a few years ago, New Australia were going to fund it but pulled out of the deal at the last minute.” This was true as up until a week ago he didn’t know the base existed, he learnt things he could, but only if he knew it wouldn’t endanger the colony. The people on Earth knew he was the person to go to if you needed to know something, and he had to be careful because he needed to keep the trust of Martian corps, also of James and Laura. Some information he couldn’t tell them because if the information was intercepted, even if it was unlikely, it would become apparent, he was a spy. He couldn’t play dumb as well because his reputation was the person who knew things. So, he added “although there was a rumour that someone had agreed to secretly fund it. But it was never confirmed, I’m guessing it does exist.”
“It exists, and New Australia never pulled out of the deal, we made it seem like it, so the public wouldn’t know it exists, that way colonists wouldn’t mention it on Mars. Just an hour ago we tried crashing the satellites into Mars, we saw a picture of one of the experimental motorbikes left at the Southern hemisphere, they only exist in the capital. That’s not the main reason why I brought you here though Corbett. We’ve lost all communication with the Colony; however, we believe the capital should be cut off from the other bases, that was the plan if this ever happened, we never anticipated them finding out about the other base. The capital is the main mining facility for the ore which we desperately need, what do you know about the ore?”
“Not very much sir, only that it’s our main source of revenue, I don’t know about Martian corps, but NASA never had any interest in it after a while, they were more focused on making a self-sustainable colony up there. If you don’t mind me asking sir, what the ore is used for?”
“All in good time Corbett, you will find out eventually, if you have patience. Today we are sending the last supplies to Charon and Demeter. The Demeter should have launched now but it hasn’t, since the war began, we’ve been trying to acquire nuclear weapons, and now we have. Keep this to yourself, I’m letting you know, because you’re in charge of controlling probes, the crew going on the Charon know about it, you and me know and that’s it.
“Now the plan is this, the Demeter will have supplies for the Martian colony, we have changed dates and things, so they think it was launched before the first incident. We will send the Demeter with supplies and a nuclear war head that will activate when it is introduced to the Martian atmosphere. It will be disguised, hidden in a super computer packaging, a timer activates when it experiences high G-force when the probes are landing, half an hour after it lands, boom. The capital is gone, we are sending two more nukes with the Charon crew in case one of the bases are retaken by the Martians. In doing this we regain 100% control of the colony. After the Charon launch, we start sending more probes that will be used to rebuild the capital, but only after the capital is gone, will they launch. This is to make it look like an accident. Any questions?”
Corbett felt sick, but he couldn’t show it, this war was getting out of hand. “No sir, very detailed plan. It’s going to take a lot of supply probes though to rebuild the capital.” Corbett was shocked to hear this, but he didn’t reveal any emotion. His first instinct was to notify the Colonists straight away. He thought it would be best if it was after the Demeter Launch, then it would appear that someone could have hidden a beacon on the Demeter before moving to the Charon.
“We’re thinking 100 probes we’ll send. Anyway, your dismissed, go and have lunch Corbett. When Demeter leaves orbit tomorrow take a few days off, you deserve it. Now if you’ll excuse me, I have to catch a flight to Sydney.” Martian Corps was still based in New Australia, but Nasa was in America, physical launches and Satellite communication were done from NASA, most other operations was done in New Australia.
That night Corbett came home, and when he opened his door, he noticed that his hall lights didn’t turn on when he walked in the door. It was a system he developed, the lights would turn on when he came home, or someone that had the chip in their keys, he lived with his wife and kid, but they were on holiday. If someone entered the house without the chip in their key ring the lights stayed off and would remain so until they were manually turned on with the chip, meaning someone had come into his home, and left, or was still there. He discretely pulled out his gun, but turned on the light, and pretended he didn’t suspect anything. “Hey, honey I’m home,” he slowly walked into his living room and continued calling out “sorry I’m late luv, some old guy at work was trying to send a parcel to his colleague on Mars, said it was important.” He saw nothing was underneath the curtain, he knew something was up, as he always left a pair of shoes at the bottom of the curtain. He fired a couple of shots where the leg would be and heard the bolts of guns close behind him, he turned around and shot two armed men, and continued shouting “yeah, he said his colleague was going crazy up there, his reindeer not being able to breath at night time.” He heard someone clapping behind him, he turned around to see an old man standing there.
“Bravo, quick reflexes Corbett, I wish we were meeting on better circumstances.” Corbett smiled, it was his old colleague from UN, the two men he had “shot” got up and smiled. The whole thing had been staged to make it look like someone had broken in, if Martian Corps found out he was in contact with the UN, he would be under suspicion. “I hear the war of independence has started. The New Australia government has announced its regret in the involvement of the colonization of Mars, and have asked Martian corps to relocate their main headquarters in the next twelve months, or they will start paying the same amount of Tax as the rest of the world. If there are any favours the space agency can do, they’ll do it. Also, we have received word from our spies in England. Three of their Nuclear weapons have gone missing, you wouldn’t have known about this would you?”
Corbett didn’t know how to answer, he didn’t know who at UN he could trust, and only his wife knew he was in contact with Mars. His son was only a few months old and wasn’t old enough to understand anything that was going on about Mars. So, he said, “shit, I heard today that Martian Corps were thinking about developing long range nukes to get to Mars, but I didn’t know that any had gone missing from England. Look it’s good to see you, but things are strained between nations as it is, now we’re at war with Mars, it’s only a matter of time before something happens here, and before you know it, we’re in the next world war.”
“Your right Corbett, it’s hard to know who to trust, so if you ever need anything let us know, I know you will always do what’s right, remember protect yourself and your family. Oh, I got what you asked for, the file containing the history of Martian corps.” The colleague handed him a folder and with that the colleague and his friends left.
Corbett wanted to know the truth about Martian Corps, and where it had come from, which was classified for some reason. He looked at the file, most of it was journal entries from someone called Skippy.
May 20th, 2032
Today I received my Inheritance from my Sister, not just the money she had, but all the shares she had as well, are now in my name. My income alone from shares now is $200,000 a year. The universe has a sick sense of humour, the rest of my family dies in a car crash, so I lose all my loved ones. But inherit everything they ever had. I bought the Powerball ticket for this week, $32 million later, I have enough money to last me the rest of my life, but no family, at the age of fifty and my wife shagging off five years ago I don’t want all this wealth, I just want to be happy. There was a gap in Journal entries as the next passage came from over a year later.
June 19th, 2033
They landed the first Astronauts on Mars but the way the world is I doubt it’ll ever get colonised.
June 20th, 2033
I went to the share brokers today and invested a lot of the money I had.
April 14th, 2034
Well my investments have paid off, the companies I invested in, have done spectacularly, my shares are now earning me over $15 Million a year. Today I bought a piece of land with a large house and scientific equipment. My good friend Willow worked for NASA but left she’s going to help me with the science stuff, together we’ll colonise Mars it sounds silly and it won’t happen, but she’s always dreamed of doing something like this since she was a kid.
May 28th, 2034
Some of the designs we proposed to NASA have been accepted. Today we officially registered as a Company, Martian corps is our name. One of the film companies I invested in released their first big block buster a few weeks ago, it’s out of the box office now, it smashed the records with tickets sold, grossing over $4 billion. I get $1 billion of that alone and then 48% of the profit they share for the year.
January 14th, 2035
We have started to receive government funding and construction of a ship that is like the one used in the novel being used to train astronauts. NASA have agreed to help us deploy it and if it is successful, we may get permission to colonise Mars. Willow and I announced our engagement today, the world has been following our company seeing what technologies we make to be used on Mars.
There was a large gap in journal entries.
August 8th, 2039
We’ve got it, Mars is going to be colonised. Because of financial problems in the US, NASA can’t afford the costs of colonization, so today we signed a contract. We will make all the equipment needed for the colony and organise the design and layout of the colony.  The colony is strictly employed by Martian corps which is an Australian company, at this stage, rumour has it we’ll be joining with New Zealand soon, so the colony will be under Australian Law. NASA will launch probes for us and handle satellite communications and Astronaut training as they have the facilities for it. I’ll have to return to the journal later, Willow’s going into Labour. 
The dates were redacted for the rest of the journal, but the years still remained
2045
We are doing well, we are turning a profit, the technology and equipment we develop for Mars some of it we sell commercially such as our 3D printers which can 3D print some metals and almost all kinds of plastic. We have developed probes and shuttles that are reusable and can be sent back from Mars. A week ago, we received our first shipment of Martian ore, the public are going mad, they want a piece Mars. Our scientists are examining the ore to see if it has any properties.
2045
We have made a major discovery of the ore it has very useful properties. Unfortunately, the rest of the entry was redacted. There was another Major gap in Journal entries
2061
This isn’t what I wanted, it’s nice we’re turning a profit, but our customers are wanting more dedication to mining the ore, my wife and I won’t allow it. Today my son started working with me at the company. I’m a bit cautious though, he doesn’t share the same vision of the colony as I do. He cares more about the shareholders and customers than expanding humanities horizons, some profit is nice, but he is over the top.
2062
Well the Shareholders voted my son in as CEO; Willow and I have lost control over our own company. My son is coming around though he has promised not to worry about profits to much and will continue to think about the wellbeing of the colony.
The entries stopped, after that was death certificate for Skippy who died three years later, his wife died five years later in 2070, the unofficial year where relations started getting slightly strained with Earth. Other things in the folder were news articles, account slips etc. There was an article dating 2090, headlining that the ore would become more of a priority.
Corbett now understood the history of Martian corps, but still didn’t know what the ore was used for. Corbett had been examining the folder for an hour now, and was exhausted and decided to talk to his wife before he went to bed.
Corbett picked up his phone and called the hotel his wife was staying at. “Hey honey how’s Turkey.”
“It’s good luv, it’s late over there why are you still up.” They weren’t speaking code or anything, but he couldn’t tell her everything over the phone in case it was being bugged on the other end.
“Had to work late, last of the probes to Demeter was launched today, and we managed to get two to the Charon as well. I had a call from my old ‘friend’ at UN, said he would help us with anything if we needed it.” They talked for a while. It was 2 in the morning When Corbett said. “Well I’m off to bed luv, see you in a couple of days have a good flight tomorrow won’t you.”
“Will do love.”
Corbett woke up at 6:30am and got ready for work. On his way to work he stopped at a dairy and bought a V energy drink and a newspaper. He got to the main control centre at 9:00am, his wife would be in the air now. It would take a while for her to come home from turkey, as she was going to England to see family. He sat at his station confirmed no one was on the Demeter. He looked at the NASA intranet to find the heading the Demeter would have to take to get to Mars. It was day specific, if you launched one day earlier or later than what you based the calculations on you could miss Mars completely. He programmed the Demeter with the heading then monitored it while it adjusted it’s heading. These ships travelled by constantly accelerating, the initial thrust was very little, but the acceleration slowly increased and could get very fast. When these ships were first built all those years ago, they had read it about it in a fiction book that had a ship that accelerated like that. The book while fiction, was scientifically accurate.
When he confirmed the Demeter was on the right path, and heading toward Mars. He activated the burn. Only Demeter did this. It had the normal acceleration engine, but it had a starting engine to make it go fast for a little while. It would burn hydrogen for an hour propelling it faster from Earth. He went into the smoko room and made a cup of coffee, and bought a sandwich at the cafeteria after reading his paper he flicked on the TV. The normal broadcast was interrupted by a special news report as it always was these days. A Martian airline, 646 Dreamliner plane had crashed leaving from Turkey going to England. It had flown a kilometre and then crashed. There were no survivors at this stage. The flight number was M3141. The flight his wife and child were on.




Chapter 7: The problem

Laura saw the man with the gun, it had just come out of the 3D printer, but where did the bullets come from. The man was shooting at her as she was running away. “You can’t escape me child.” She didn’t see his face, but his voice was sharp enough to cut through metal. She ran through the complex and tried to escape, she knew she wouldn’t have time to change into her EVA suit. She managed to run into the rover complex and quickly got into and pressurised a rover. The air locks and rovers were designed to pressurise, and respond quickly in case of emergency. She drove away from the capital.
She looked at the monitor that showed what was behind her, the man was still chasing her with a gun but was now was wearing an EVA suit. She felt the tires give way on her as they were shot. She heard a thump on the roof as the man chasing her jumped. He used the air lock on the roof to get in and he began to speak. “You let her die.” She turned her head, it was James.
“No…” she cried, James wouldn’t betray her, he couldn’t.
“You let her die.” She screamed as he shot her. She stopped screaming once she woke up.
Laura looked at the time and saw it was 8:30am, John had wanted to see her in her office at 9. Laura tried reached for her communicator, which was very rare for a Martian born to have, the communicators could directly communicate to any room in the complex, and tried calling James’ flat, no answer. After having a shower and a small breakfast she went to meet John at her office, this took her longer than it normally would because of the wheel chair.
It was two days after James’ mother had been murdered. Laura was reading an email that she had just received from Xander.
James and Laura. The Demeter launched two days ago, there’s no easy way to say this it’s got a nuclear weapon on it. It’s set to detonate half an hour after it lands. Also, the Charon will be carrying another two nuclear weapons as well. I’ll do the best I can to try and stop these from getting to you. I have enclosed instructions on how John maybe able to hack the Demeter, and not have the nuclear weapon detonate at the capital at all. Sorry I haven’t been able to reply sooner. Xander.
Laura showed this John. Laura was the first to speak. “That’s fucking stupid. Did earth wake up one morning and say ‘let’s launch a surprise nuclear attack on Mars, an attack that will take eight months to get a result’ they’re fucking overreacting. John can you hack into it?”
“When it gets closer, the thing is we need the supplies that’s on it. I suggest we ask Xander if he knows what pod the nuke is in, if he does, we get the Demeter to send all other supply pods to us and then send the nuke to another part of Mars or maybe even a moon.” John and Laura were in Laura’s office and had been formulating a plan to get city Alpha 2 back, when the email had come through.
“Alright, we’ve got time to figure that out anyway. We need to focus on the hostage situation in the two bases. We can’t meet their demands, obviously. I don’t know how to handle that situation if I’m honest.”
“Does James know how long we can survive without supplies from Earth or the other bases?” Laura just shook her head.
No one had spoken to James since the broadcast, he always walked away or just ignored people. “I haven’t asked him. I’ve let him take the week off. No one should have to see what he did. I have Steve working in the agriculture tents, planting all the crops he brought from his base. Are you absolutely certain that the other two cities can’t communicate with earth in anyway shape or form?”
“Yip, transmissions only you have the authority to do, even if they to use rocks for Morse code, Earth wouldn’t be able to see. Can we negotiate with the Colonists that have taken control?” John had double and triple checked that they couldn’t communicate with Earth and had made firewalls around the server in the capital. The other two bases couldn’t send a transmission, the capital was the only place that had a communications array to talk with Earth.
“We can try, they did say they organised a way for us to communicate with them. First, I think I’ll go and see if James is ok, he needs to know about the nuclear weapons, organise for a live stream in the capital in one hour. They all deserve to know what’s going on.” John nodded in approval.
Laura wheeled her way through the capital to James’ flat, she knew he wouldn’t be home, but it was worth a try. As Laura was a high-ranking member of the colony, she had access to everywhere. She went into James quarters, but he wasn’t home, and his personal EVA suit was gone.
Laura took out her personal communicator. She dialled the stream room where John was. “John, James’s EVA suits missing, can you track it.” All EVA suits were tracked and monitored to make sure people on EVA’s were safe and healthy, Martian born EVA’s were tracked compulsory but an Earth colonist could disable the tracker.
“Sure, give me a sec.” He brought up James’ profile and clicked track EVA suit 1. Just as he clicked that though the computer flashed blue. “Oh, for fuck sake, computer ran into an error and has to unexpectedly reboot. Hang on, one of the other computers is beeping at me, someone just made an unauthorised access to the observatory room. That’s not part of the complex Laura, you would need an EVA suit to get to it.”
“If James is in there why does it say unauthorised access?”
“Because Martian borns aren’t allowed to use the telescope during business hours, unless it’s coming up to a launch.” A lot of systems and places were unauthorised for Martian borns, and still alerted them, John was trying to rewrite the software in his own time to suit the Martian borns.
“Of course, I’m on my way over there now, if I’m not back in an hour make the live stream unless you hear from me to tell you otherwise.”
Laura went to her locker area in the capital and got changed into an EVA suit which was difficult in a wheel chair. The observatory had its own life support and was only a five-minute walk away from the capital, but it wasn’t directly attached to the capital complex because, it was only a new building. The area had completed construction, but new areas had to be tested and stand alone for 18 months before an air lock could be attached to the capital.
Laura entered the observatory. The computers were all turned on, the Telescope was operating. The observatory had an opening for the telescope to see out of, but a false ceiling was in place, so workers didn’t have to wear an EVA suit in the observatory. The observatory was the only building in the capital that was made of solid material such as metal and bricks, while the other buildings were made of a specialised canvas because of the weight to send all the equipment to Mars.
James was sitting in the telescope chair looking at the stars, the telescope would record whatever he was looking at. James didn’t move from the telescope but began to speak. “We lost contact from one of the probes we sent from here two months ago. Stopped transmitting, I knew it was a long shot, but I was trying to see if I could find it. No luck though. What can I do for you Laura? And don’t just say you came to see how I was, because I hate that, if I need counselling I would go to the councillor.”
Laura sighed and put her hand on James’ shoulder. “James no one should have to see what you did, sometimes just even talking to a friend is ok, I’m here if you need me, however that’s not the only reason I’m here. We received an important message from Xander. Earth have sent Nuclear weapons to us. One on the Demeter and two on the Charon. We’re looking into it to see what we can do, I’m making a live stream in an hour, anyway we have eight months to figure out a solution, the more pressing issue is the hostages in the other bases.”
James spoke a little rough but not unkindly “My solution is, if we can find out where the hostages are. Get John to hack into the complex and open the all air locks where the colonists are, unless in the crop areas. Then the hostages over power who remains and escape.”
“If it comes to it that is a solution, but I think enough people have died in this war already. The sad thing is, Earths hardly suffered.” James continued to look through the telescope while he was talking with Laura.
“Yes and no. They haven’t suffered because they haven’t lost any lives in this war that we know of. But that ore must be very important to them, and we have control of it. We need to know what it’s used for.”
“I’ve got scientists working on it day and night but they just don’t have enough equipment up here as what they have on Earth.”
“Are you ok Laura you sound I don’t know, scared?”
“Bad dream, nothing that should bother you.”
“Laura, I know I’ve kept my distance the last few days, I’m not fine, far from it, but I’ve talked to the councillor, and I know you guys are here for me when I need it, my pain isn’t yours though, so what’s bothering you.” Laura sighed and told him about the nightmare she had. James spoke. “Laura it wasn’t your fault, there wasn’t anything any of us could have done, I think we both need to accept it.”
“Thanks James. Look why don’t you come over to my house tonight, John and Amber are coming over…” James held up his hand for her to stop talking.
“This is important, come and look at this.”
“Well this is a problem.” Laura looked through the telescope, she couldn’t believe what she saw, as it was only just coming into the telescopes range, but what she saw was a meteor, and to have a visual at this distance it was very large.




Chapter 8: The next Mission

James was still struggling with the death of his mother, but this was a good distraction for him. He was thankful for Laura coming to talk to him. Every night he went to sleep he saw her getting shot. He knew that his mother would want him to focus on his work and the situation at hand and mourn in his own time.
John, James, Laura and Amber were sitting in the conference room. James was using one of the monitors to demonstrate what was going on. He had an image of the meteor taken with a telescope in Mars orbit, the telescope was more powerful than Earths old Hubble telescope. “It’s 200m wide which is large for a meteor, it’s two weeks away. It won’t hit us, it will fly by and will be close to Mars, visible from the right point on Mars. I have calculated its path and unfortunately the way it’s aligned the meteor will go to Earth.”
Laura was the first to speak. “How did we miss this? Will it hit earth?”
“Our satellites and telescopes aren’t as powerful as Earths’ and we can’t track as much as what Earth can, also we haven’t used the telescopes lately due to other events. It’s not on a direct collision course, but let me demonstrate something.” He changed the image. It displayed a large circle labelled Earth and a line was drawn going past Earth but being very close to it. “This image shows the course of the Meteor, if Earth for intents and purposes didn’t have a gravitational pull. It would go straight past Earth. However, allow for gravity.” He clicked a button on his pointer and the line curved until its end hit the circle representing Earth. “Earth’s gravity puts the Meteor on a decaying orbit. Meaning the Meteor will hit Earth. I estimate it will land in Europe. Reducing the population of Europe to zero.”
John spoke next “well the movies didn’t get it right did they. What do we do?”
Amber spoke next “I want to say let the meteor hit the bastards, but I don’t think any continent or civilians deserve that.”
Laura was the last to speak. “We can’t just sit here and do nothing, either we warn Earth, or we try and come up with a solution ourselves. Has anyone got any ideas, I don’t care how abstract it is just an idea at this point is what I want.”
Everyone was silent for a minute, James then rose his hand and said, “I have an idea but it’s stupid.”
“I don’t care at this stage James, if the concept is there, we can work with it, what is your idea?”
“We send a team onto the meteor and we grab the nukes from the Demeter and Charon on its way to earth. We drill a hole for the nukes, remote detonate from here when the meteor is close to Earth, so it is pushed far enough out of the orbit to not do damage.”
Laura sighed she didn’t want to be too harsh on James, but she knew he would be more upset for not saying what she truly thought to him “Your right James.”
“What you agree?”
“No, it’s stupid sounds like a suicide mission, we’re not Bruce Willis here, we need a viable solution.”
John spoke up “hang on Laura don’t dismiss his idea straight away. We have drills here from when the mines were first created. We could hack into the Demeter and Charon to adjust the course, to intercept the meteor and grab the nukes. With the Demeter its easy we just eject it out of its pod, and whatever supplies the team on the meteor need. We dock with the Charon and commandeer it, send the nukes to the meteor, and then bring the team onto the Charon and bring them back here.”
Laura started to consider it “Why can’t the nukes be detonated straight after the Charon dock?”
James offered the solution, “because Laura space is a vacuum, no atmosphere or anything for it to push the meteor off course. We need the explosion to be close to Earth’s gravity and atmosphere to force the meteor on a new course. I suggest we don’t tell Earth about this either, we have a broadcast prepared, we send the instructions to Xander, he sends it to the meteor when it’s close enough. Five minutes before it’s too late the broadcast gets sent to Earth saying the meteor is coming. We say if Earth had been kind to us we could have stopped it. Then the explosion happens, we save Europe, Earths happy and bob’s your uncle we have independence. It can also help us with our hostage situation.”
“How?” Laura was still not 100% convinced but it did sound plausible.
“We tell them what we plan to do, show them the images and hopefully because we are saving Earth, they at least stop executing hostages.”
“Alright you guys have almost convinced me, but one question James. How do you expect to hide this from Earth?”
“Well we hack into all their satellites and telescopes as we get closer and feed them with false information.”
“Ok, how many people do you think we should send?”
“We need to keep it to a minimum in case something goes wrong. I’d say two. The second person is for when we board the Charon, one person is on the meteor putting the final nukes in position. The other person sends the probe back from the Charon to pick up the second person on the Meteor.”
Laura sighed she didn’t want to ask but she did. “You’re going to suggest yourself again, aren’t you?”
“I am, for the same reason as when I went to the South Pole. If we land on the meteor and put it onto a spin and us taking off puts it on a spin, I need to be able to calculate where to drill the hole to put the nukes, so they are in the right position, and we blast the meteor away from earth and not towards it.”
“Alright, I’ll prepare an emergency live stream to the colony straight away. You have complete authority of the equipment you want to take. James you send a message to Xander. Amber I want you to send a communique to city Alpha 2 and tell them what we plan to do. John make the hacks you need to so Earth don’t see this. After we’ve all done that meet back here and we’ll start making a list of everything we need for mission.”
With that they went to accomplish their tasks. James went to the supercomputer and sent the email straight to Xander’s email, it was encrypted, and Earth wouldn’t see it, but he didn’t need to disguise the message on his end as they controlled the computer. He summarised what they had learned and told him about the meteor and the plan.
John was also at the supercomputer with James, “who do you want to go with you to the meteor because if you haven’t chosen anyone, I would like to come with you?”
“I would like that too, your one of my best friends but I’m sorry John, I’m replaceable, a computer can do my job, just not as efficiently as I can. Whereas you’re the one that has access to everything in orbit and are a lot more experienced with computers than I am. Yeah, I can make complex programs, but it is just mainly problem solving, whereas you are hacking into satellites changing the images a computer can’t replace that.”
“I hope you’re not doing this because of your mother?”
“No, John, I’m not.” James knew people would think that when he suggested himself, but he was telling the truth, he could think and do calculations quickly enough if anything went wrong.
“Who were you planning on taking then?”
“I don’t know, the real question is what are you going to do about Amber when I’m gone?”
“I’ll get there eventually, when are you going to tell Laura how you feel, yeah I see how you look at her.”
At that moment all the monitors changed and showed Laura’s face. The Martian anthem was blasting through all the intercoms and speakers. Then Laura began to speak “my fellow Martians I’m sorry to interrupt your daily tasks with this stream. Basically, here’s the situation. Earlier today we received word from our spy on Earth that there were three Nuclear devices heading for Mars. One in the Demeter, two in the Charon.
“We had been struggling to find a solution when two hours ago we, well James, discovered a meteor was headed towards Mars. It will miss Mars, but it will fly past us, and it will reach Earth. The meteor will pass to close to Earth, it will bring the meteor into a decaying orbit and it is estimated it will destroy Europe. The meteor will pass us in two weeks. We plan to send a team of two to the meteor. We will adjust the paths of the Charon and Demeter to intercept with the meteor as the routes don’t intercept. The plan is to take the nukes and detonate them on the meteor when it passes Earth. This will push the Meteor far enough out of Earth’s orbit that it won’t cause damage.
“We expect everyone to return from this mission. We are attempting this so that Earth will be in our debt and we can gain independence and because it’s the right thing to do. However, we will need to send supplies with the team to the meteor, enough food and water to last at least eight months and fuel to get to and off the meteor. Due to this we will need to ration supplies until we can produce enough food to replace it. If there are any complaints or questions you have my email, send them and I will get them answered.”
With that James and John finished what they were doing and started walking to the conference room.
“So, James, you discovered the meteor you get to name it, any ideas?”
“Well it’s a big meteor with the capacity to destroy an entire continent and kill billions of people, oh there are so many people and famous 21st century political leaders I could name it after, but I think I’ll call it Libertas, the Roman goddess of freedom.”
“A fitting name.”
Laura met them at the conference room and said, “ok so what we are doing today is making a list of all the supplies we need for the trip. How much food and everything we need. James, I have decided to send Steve with you on this mission. He has the best knowledge of the Charon and Demeter of the people we can trust. Also, he’s a small fellow he won’t eat much food, he hates Earth as much as we do so we can trust him. I’ve spoken with him and he’s agreed, we’ll send you all the crops that he brought with him from his base that haven’t been planted yet. Remember you will be spending months on the meteor with not much to do apart from drilling. I need you to calculate how much fuel we need and how much weight we have room for etc, start working on that now and we’ll start making a list of everything you need and how much weight it is etc.”
“Sure, thing boss, do you think we could get some food in here though, I haven’t eaten all day and it’s past lunch time.”
“Well I have the mess hall bringing in some pizzas soon will that do?” James nodded his head.
The next few hours were spent making a list of supplies and working out what they could take, and what they couldn’t. It had to be finished today so that tomorrow they could start preparing for the mission, getting the supplies, fuelling up the shuttle etc. It was 6pm when Amber looked at her laptop and said. “We’ve received a response from the terrorists. They’ve agreed to not kill hostages until Earth is safe. They will kill hostages if we attempt anything to free them. They will send us one shipment of 100kg of whatever supplies we need. They say for now we can function as two separate nations. We are to send them a list of what we want, and they’ll send it tomorrow night, after that no more communication until the team is back.”
“Ok send them a list of the food that we need the most for this mission, we can provide the equipment, but they can send food we don’t have.”
So, they continued working, it was midnight when they finished planning everything that would be sent with them on the mission. The next day James and John figured out exactly where and when the ships would need to be to adjust course etc. It would be 9 months when they would return. He had made a list of coding instructions and saved it as a text file and sent it to Xander. Xander would resave the file as an executable and run it a day before the meteor was due to hit earth. They would have a beacon on the meteor that would send a signal straight to Xander’s personal email when it was 24 hours away from Earth.
Laura focused on preparing the probe and started gathering the food as her tasks were limited in the wheel chair. Amber did what she could to help but still had to attend the school and do her assignments.
The two weeks passed soon enough, and everything was on schedule. Steve and James were sitting in the makeshift probe. The probes they had on Mars weren’t designed to be manned, but they did have controls in case they needed to be. They mainly were used for Mars to send big shipments of the Martian ore to Earth, so they were large and used a lot of fuel, and the probes were usually sent back with supplies that the Colonists needed but not the Martian borns.
John’s voice came over the communication system “Martian probe this is Martian capital are we go for flight.”
“John what happened to this isn’t the 21st century?”
“This is actually an official and important mission so may as well sound official, are we go flight?”
“Yes, Probe Awesome is ready for Mission ‘save the fuck heads.’ Count down ten, nine, eight, oh fuck this shit, two one blast off.” James pushed the big red button on the console and the probe ignited. Mission ‘save the fuck heads’ was on its way.




Chapter 9: The reaction

Corbett was sitting in the lawyer’s office while they went over the will. Corbett knew that today was the day that the colony would be launching the probe to the meteor. His wife had been the CEO of a small Airline company that she had created, she had owned 51%of the shares. They did a few commercial flights, but they mainly hired out planes to Celebrities and VIPs etc. The company had been privately owned so he inherited everything. They personally had a private Jet in their name, but the rest of the planes were in the company name. She had left him the business, the Jet and everything.
“Now Corbett, she left you pretty much all of her financial assets, and a couple of small things that were important to her. But the rest of her belongings she’s left to the rest of her family, such as her Antique smart phone collection. She also had requested, but understands if you don’t do this, that you let her sister run the day to day things for the company as she wants you to keep your job at NASA. Any questions?”
Corbett understood and was thankful the company wouldn’t be another thing he had to worry about. He just wanted the bodies of his wife and child back to cremate them, burials had been outlawed in the late 21st century due to overpopulation. He also kept thinking about the meteor that was coming to Earth. So much was running through his head, he had considered the easy way out, but he knew that the Martian colony needed him. The thing he wanted most was answers. “Yeah, do they know what caused the crash yet?”
“Well the full extensive reports not in yet, and the black boxes haven’t been found yet, but they think it was engine failure.”
“Alright, were there any survivors?”
“None at all, I’m surprised she chose to fly through a commercial airline and not with one of your planes or pilots.”
“She had won a trip for two. So, she took our son as I couldn’t get time off work, with the supply runs coming up and we’ve been having issues that have needed resolving on the Martian colony.” The world was unaware that the Martian war of independence was happening.
“Ok, I need you just to sign these forms and we can get this sorted.”
Corbett left the lawyers office. He hadn’t been in at work for the last couple of weeks after what had happened, he would go back tomorrow. He came back home opened a bottle of rum and started drinking from the bottle while checking his email.
Hi Xander, the launch was successful we have confirmed that they have landed on the Meteor. The Demeter and Charon will need minor course adjustments and that’s all taken care of. We’ll keep you posted, we believe this plan will work, but we suggest staying out of Europe in 9 months’ time. We haven’t heard from you in a while is everything ok.
Corbett hadn’t told them about his family dying, while it was hard for him to talk about it was also better not to. If the message was intercepted, even though it was unlikely, that would get him identified as a spy. He was happy that at least one member of his family was still alive she was just 60 Million km away.
The next day Corbett went into work, he was glad that no one asked him how he was feeling or if he was alright. He was called into Franklins office. “I’m sorry for your loss, you don’t have to be here if you don’t want to.” Corbett just sat there so Franklin continued. “We’ve been ahead of schedule with the supplying of the Charon. In fact, all that is needed is to send the probe with the crew’s personal luggage for the trip, and then the crew themselves. All goes well we launch the probe tomorrow, and then the crew the day after. You’ve been through a lot lately so I’m going to let you choose from our trained colonists who you want to send up from this list here.” Franklin showed him a screen of 45 people, there was another page which had 6 people. “15 Colonists, two crew, all these candidates are trained and are here at NASA ready to go. If you know who you want, select them now. These people include the lottery candidates as well.”
Corbett selected the colonists he thought would be suitable for the mission, the one’s he thought would give James and Laura the least amount of grief. They’ve practically given us the power to win this war, now don’t get over confident, focus. “Done.”
“Great, we’ll get them ready. Also, if you’re up to it, I want you to start Astronaut training immediately. We have the next two colonists’ groups selected. I want you to lead the next mission after that. When we rebuild the colony with full control, I want you there.”
Corbett was gobsmacked oh crap he knows I’m a traitor. Calm down he can’t suspect anything just be weary. “I’m honoured sir, thank you. I’ll start training immediately. Well after the Charon gets on its way.”
Franklin nodded in approval and showed him out of the office. Corbett knew he would be even more busy from now on. However, he didn’t see that the Charon would be doing any more missions after this one. He retrieved the information required from NASA’s intranet for the Charon’s heading, he put all the necessary files into a folder. When the last probe is sent to the Charon it sends a digital folder to the Charon. The information it contains is the heading, all the files on the crew and the colonists going to the city. This information was always sent with the last probe because it contained information of all the inventory the Charon had as well. That way when the passengers arrived all the information was there waiting for them. However, Corbett added extra files into the digital folder that would secretly be transferred to the Charon. He saved the folder onto an external hard drive, as the information was at least 200gb.
Corbett went to the room where the Segway’s were kept and rode it to the other end of the complex where he knew the supply probe was. It took 20 minutes to get from SatCon to where the probe was. He flashed his badge to security and they let him into the hangar where the probe was. Andy the person in charge of loading the probe came up and said, “Corbett, I’m sorry for your loss, to what do we owe the pleasure?”
“Just got the data package for the Charon, was having problems sending it to you over the intranet. So, I brought it to you in person. Data package was to large or something, you know what technology is like these days, works well when it doesn’t matter but when it’s really important it fails.”
“True enough, well there’s the terminal over there, have you got the certified slip though, you know to confirm it’s been scanned and certified.”
“Well no but on my desktop when I scanned it I ran it through the verifier, I took a photo of it.” He showed Andy the photo on his phone. Everything seemed fine. “I also have a video of copying it over to show it hasn’t been tampered with.” He showed him the video.
“Everything seems in order. Just let me check that between there and here nothing has been added to it.” Andy plugged the Hard drive into his laptop run a piece of software to show that it hadn’t been tampered with. Everything checked out.
What Corbett had done was copied folder off from his laptop. Then did the verified copy off the desktop. However, he had changed the settings on his desktop. If you were copying a folder to an area that had a folder with the same name it would simply merge the folders. It would also replace all files in destination with the same name. It did all this without telling the user what was going on. So, to Andy it looked like that it was copied over no problem.
Corbett plugged the drive into the terminal. The terminal was directly wired to the on board computer systems in the probe, and with that the digital package was copied onto the probe without anyone knowing that it held a small hidden program, that when the time was right all communications aboard the Charon would be disabled.
Corbett returned to his work station and positioned the Charon so that the probe could easily dock with it. He adjusted the satellites, so they could get a clear view of the Charon. He sent a message to the international space station to notify them of the specific details of the launch in the next few days. Everything was going smoothly.
When Corbett got home that night, he lifted his mattress and took out a phone that had been hidden in a cut-out area of the mattress. He rung up his old colleague from UN. He didn’t tell him about the meteor or the nukes, but told him a plan he had thought of. The colleague agreed to help.
Over the next two days the Charon was successfully loaded with the supply probe and the colonists, and crew successfully boarded on it. On the third day they confirmed that the Charon had successfully departed from Earth’s orbit.




Chapter 10: The voyage

“What the fuck, how can she outrun a T-rex in fucking high heels.” James and Steve were sitting in their probe watching a movie on their laptop. They had been on the Meteor for four months now. It had taken them two weeks to drill the holes they were planning to put the nukes in. They weren’t very deep, but they were deep enough to channel the explosion in one direction. They had three main holes dug, one for each nuke. They had dug extra holes for the oxygen tanks to fuel air into the main holes when they detonated. This would allow the air to ignite and should provide enough force to push away from the Earth to stop it from crashing into the Earth.
They were expecting to intercept the Demeter in two weeks’ time. Stealing the nuke from the Demeter would be the easiest. They had received a message from Xander telling them what pod the nuke was in. All they had to do was use the simple program John had made to tell the Demeter which pod to eject and what direction to eject it in. They would also take water and some food from the Demeter because it had proven difficult to grow crops on the meteor in the probe.
It was night time according to the clocks and James knew that everyone in the capital would be asleep by now. “I can’t believe the only form of entertainment they ever sent us was shit that was over a hundred years old.”
“That mate is because lots of things referenced the world wars afterwards, and governments took control of the entertainment industry. Lots of TV shows, movie franchises etc were cancelled and others stop production because there were so many things that weren’t allowed to be said on TV. Trust me Earth is fucked up. For example, lots of comedies started making Jokes about the Australian prime minister being changed, one joke of a sitcom is this ‘What another old girlfriend, blimey you’ve had more relationships than Ausie’s had prime ministers.’ The remaining episodes were never aired, a week later the executive producers went missing. That’s just one example of how fucked up Earth is.”
James took a sip from his drink and asked a question. “There’s one thing that’s always bothered us Martians. We saw how quickly technology advanced from 1900 to 2000, it advanced a lot. So, tell me how come since the mid-2030s technology has only slightly improved, why don’t we have warp speed and laser guns etc. I mean from what I saw on tv even smart phones stopped being updated every six months.”
“You raise an excellent point. Most of technology advanced through wars etc. Well after the third world war lots of people died, and a lot of money was spent. The Martian program costs a lot of money, but they do get their money back. But lots of things on Earth are produced just to be used on Mars, solar panels for example aren’t used on Earth, they are only made on Mars.”
“Can’t they be used on Earth as well?”
“No. There is so much smog in the air that solar panels are not very efficient. It takes maybe a week to charge a cell phone with a large solar panel. In fact, while lots of countries don’t like it the most efficient way of producing power, is nuclear power. Every country in the world has at least three nuclear power stations, that’s not an average; the country with the least amount of nuclear power is the old New Zealand, which has 3.”
All this was taking James by surprise, he didn’t think Earth was that bad. “What about what was it called, hydroelectric, I think it was called?”
“Some places do use it, but you see water is harder to reproduce than what it was. Water used to vaporise, then it would rain, mountain tops and that fed lakes etc. It still does but not as much. See what Earth doesn’t want you to know, is that there isn’t a single mountain that has snow or ice on its peak, not even Everest. The polar ice caps have melted mostly.
“We also use water to power our cars now. See cars are quite big and have batteries in them. The way they work is you full up your car using the hose in your back garden, you turn on the batteries to the car, and your car separates the water into H2 and oxygen. It takes about 12 hours to do this for a full tank of water, hence why petrol stations still exist but now they also sell hydrogen. So basically, your car burns hydrogen and uses a little oxygen. So, in that aspect we have advanced but not as much as you would think. Also, the amount of money and resources it costs to advance that much Earth doesn’t have anymore.”
They continued talking for a while. The next couple of weeks went quickly, they did system and fuel checks during the day, and everything was always ok. Soon they intercepted the Demeter, James selected the pods to eject. The nuke and three supplies of food arrived safely on the Meteor.
They had the nuke in the mining vehicle they had brought with them. Steve took it out of the box. “Well let’s put it in the hole.”
“What about running a check on it, make sure it detonates, etc?”
“She’ll be right mate, she’s been in space for months mate, and it was designed to land on Mars. Which has a lot more gravitational pull than this thing. I for one would rather not spend that much time in a confined vehicle with a nuclear war head.” Steve wasn’t scared easily, but a tactical nuclear war head was one of the few things that made him wary.
“Can you at least check to make sure that it’s armed. Then we can put in the software patch that John made for us.”
“Fine.” So, they spent half an hour making sure it didn’t activate accidentally and setting it up to remote detonate if the timer didn’t start. They then spent an hour carefully putting the nuke in its hole and wiring it up to the oxygen tank. Back on mars they had raided lots of the colonist’s rooms, and had found c4 explosives. So, they had taken that up to meteor to get a bigger explosion to push it further away from Earth.
They took the rest of the supplies back to the probe they were staying in. One of the supply pods had cider in it so Steve and James cracked open a stubby of cider each. “Hey James, are we close enough to Earth to get TV?”
“No, we’re not, not without like an hour lag. Why?” They did have a small communications array with them, so they could talk with Mars if they needed to, but John had made a small program that could patch into Earths communications if they ever got close enough.
“Well with the new supplies we have booze, chip, dip and the State of Origin’s on that’s all, what else could we want?”
James just about blurted out Laura but stopped himself and said. “Please state of Origin got ruined in the early 2020s when New Zealand entered a team.”
“Yeah well they got rid of them now. There is another one though like state of origin that’s the old nation of New Zealand vs the Old Nation of Australia.” Steve and James continued talking for the rest of the night.
A month passed. It was early morning when the Charon was passing past the meteor. They would have one hour for James to dock with the Charon, send the nukes to Steve, who would wire them up. Then come to the Charon. The Charon had been decelerating on its approach to the Meteor, the crew had no control of the ship and no communication with Earth.
James knew exactly what cargo the nukes were held in, because they received all the information the ship was processing, fuel, course, pressure etc. The ship had Geiger counters in every room to make sure that there wasn’t a radiation leak from the argon reactors. They received the information from the Geiger counters, so he knew where the radiation for nukes was coming from. The secondary cargo hold, which had an airlock.
Steve was waiting in his EVA suit on the surface when James took off from the meteor. Unless someone was looking out the window the crew shouldn’t suspect that someone was coming. Xander had put in a small software patch into the Charon that would disable communications when it was far away from Earth, and received the instruction to change course. It also fed false information sent from the probe.
James successfully docked but when he got out of the probe, five people were waiting outside the air lock for him. The person who was obviously the captain came up to him and said “you must be James. Xander told us about you. Yeah, he had a few friends at UN who worked with NASA. We know exactly what’s happening and offer our help in any way we can.”
“Thank you, captain, if I might ask, where is everyone else?”
“Confined to quarters, they were colonists, they tried taking control of the ship when they found out what was going on.” James gave the captain a questioning look. “They found the bug in the Charon, so we had to explain what was going on. We gained control of the ship but they took out all the communications arrays, so we can’t actually communicate with Mars. Until we are in its orbit. We should focus on getting those nukes onto the Meteor, and getting your friend back then we can talk.”
The nukes had been loaded into short supply probes, so they were sent onto the Meteor without having to load them onto the main probe to avoid a build-up of radiation. James talked to Steve on the Meteor. “The nukes are on their way. I’m sending the probe back to you now.” James launched the probe to the meteor. However, he noticed something wasn’t right. The angle was to small, it would miss the meteor. “Steve it looks like there is a problem with the probes course. I’m remote adjusting it now.”
James had his laptop with him that he could use the remote, to control the probe. However, every time he tried adjusting the course the probe adjusted back to the original course. “Steve are you doing this?”
“Doing what?”
“Every time I adjust the course it changes back. It’s going to overshoot the meteor; I’ll see if I can get one of the MDVs down to you and get it back up.”
“Captain, can we use the MDV, and what is causing that probe to adjust?”
The captain turned to one of the men and said, “go and see what’s going on, we shouldn’t be locked out of the system. I’m sorry James but we can’t send the MDV down it’s far too heavy. If it lands on the Meteor it won’t just put it on a spin, but it’ll change its course, only by a few degrees, but enough to change it from a decaying orbit to a collision course. The nukes wouldn’t blast it away from Earth. If we can stop the probe adjusting, or even bring it back, we might have a chance to manually land it.”
“Steve we can’t send down the MDV without changing the course of the meteor, I’m trying to adjust the course or bring it back but I’m not John I can’t stop whoever it is attacking. Wait I’ve got it, I’ve got control, it’s coming back.” As James remote piloted it back it was turning around a full 180°, but at the 90° Angle another incoming signal was sent to the Probe, the engines ignited at full blast, sending the probe off in the opposite direction. Steve would not be coming back.




Phase 3: The End





Chapter 11: The next war

Corbett was attending a conference. Today was the day that the meteor was due to hit Earth, and wipe out Europe. He was in England as they were announcing what had caused the flight his wife was on to crash. The Chief investigator of the NTSB was speaking to the nation. The NTSB was involved because it was an American airline and an American crew on board flight M3141. Franklin from NASA was with Corbett.
“We have determined the cause of the crash to be a design failure. All Dreamliner planes are to be grounded until this fault is fixed. The design of having two propeller engines and two jet engines was the cause of this accident. Having two different types of engines means that the fuel is distributed unevenly. One wing had more fuel than the other, and due to weight difference caused the plan to tilt, due to low altitude this tilt was unable to be corrected, and resulted in the plane crashing.”
Corbett couldn’t help it, but he was nervous, he was anxious about finding out the cause of his wife and sons’ death, but in about two minutes it would be announced to the world that a meteor was coming, and in about five minutes they would find out if James’ solution would work. Franklin could tell he was nervous “what’s wrong Corbett? You’re finally getting your answer.” The chief investigator detailed a plan how to improve the design of the Dreamliner, but ultimately suggested they be discontinued as an aircraft.
It was at that moment when all the screens showed the face of Laura and James. Laura addressed the population. “Dear people of Earth. I’m not sure if your aware of the fact that for the last few months Mars and Earth have been fighting a war of independence.” She quickly described what had happened. “We’ve sent full recordings of what happened to one of our contacts on Earth. and have made it available over the internet. Earth tried to stop us with nuclear weapons. Months ago, we saw a meteor heading towards Earth and it would pass Mars. It will crash into Europe and reduce its population to zero. Here is a live feed from your new Hubble telescope to confirm it.” The screen showed the meteor closing in on Earth. “We could have done something about this if we had been treated fairly.” It still showed the meteor as it was starting to be pulled into the Earth’s atmosphere. The side of the meteor closest to Earth exploded, and the meteor slowly moved away from Earth but was pulled back in.
There was an even bigger explosion from the meteor, as it was pushed far enough away from Earth’s atmosphere not to do damage. Laura’s voice continued over the speakers “However we have no quarrel with Europe. Just because a few people on Earth have disappointed us doesn’t mean that millions of people deserve to die. Your astronomers will now check to see if the meteor is there. But people in Europe should be able to see the shadow of it in the sky.” It could be seen. The transmission ended, and everyone rushed home.
Nasa had a small office in England, or rather a large caravan that they used when they were required to travel to other countries to which Franklin and Corbett had retired to. Franklin didn’t display any emotion. But Corbett was relieved. “Would you like a coffee Corbett?”
“Yes please.” Franklin poured him a cup of coffee and handed it to him. Corbett took a big sip from it.
“Your quite happy Corbett.”
“I found out what caused my wife and son’s death. We survived being destroyed by a meteor. Good day to be happy.” Even though it was an extremely emotional day.
“Yes, but you looked nervous before the meteor was announced.”
“That’s because I was sir, I didn’t want to be here today.” Corbett realised what he was saying. Franklin just smiled.
“Sodium pentothal, I won’t lie to you it’s a truth serum. I was wondering why you were so nervous then the meteor thing made sense, but you were nervous before hand almost as if you knew about it. I dismissed that idea, but when Laura started talking about spies, I began to think how did they find out about the nukes, how did they know exactly where they were. I only suspected, and I hoped it wasn’t true but by your reactions you’ve basically revealed to me that you’re the spy. I don’t know how you’ve been in contact with them, or how long but all in due course. I must admit you’ve done very well to hide it. Tell me everything and the worst that will happen to you is you die quickly.” A cruel smile appeared on Franklins face.
“You’re not the only one who can slip things into people’s drink Franklin. I found the sodium pentothal earlier on this trip. I couldn’t destroy it because that would reveal that I found it, and had something to hide. So earlier today I took the antidote for sodium pentothal. I also poisoned your scrambled eggs and coffee this morning. A poison that would take hours for it to affect you.”
“Your bluffing.” But franklin had been fighting an excruciating headache for the last few minutes. He didn’t think anything of it, migraines were common in his family. His vision was slowly starting to get fuzzy.
“Breakfast was hours ago Franklin. Just think I was your most trusted employee. I knew everything. Now without you I’ll run NASA and be able to help the Martians gain freedom.”
“You idiot, after my death the executives of Martian corps will take control and,” he started coughing, and his head fell to his desk and bubbles were coming out of his mouth. Franklin was dead.
There was a knock at the door. It was three knocks, one knock three knocks. Corbett let them in. It was his colleague from UN. “We have a jet standing ready to get us out of here to New Australia. They agreed to help us.”
The Jet took them directly to Sydney in New Australia. The flight only took 19 hours as opposed to the 22 hours it normally took. A man was waiting for them when they arrived. By the time they got to the space agency in New Australia it had been 24 hours since the meteor incident. They entered a room where the Prime minister of New Australia was, with a few other people. They were all sitting around a large table.
“Gentlemen please take a seat. There’s been a lot of dispute happening in the last 24 hours. Most countries in Europe are grateful that the Martians helped them. Martian corps and the American congress are not happy with it. They think Mars should have sent a message to Earth straight away and not acted. England and the US have been at each other’s throats for most of that 24 hours. England and several other countries in Europe want to help the colony, send them several supplies and grant them independence. America and several other countries disagree.
“From the intel that Corbett has provided us with from his friends at NASA. We have found out that the American government plan to send a nuclear weapon to England. Corbett if you please.”
“Yeah so, I have a few friends at NASA that are on our side, and have secretly revealed to me they agree with the Martians. They have never said this to any executives as people that are openly on the Martians side end up going missing. I had one of them write in a small piece of code that will allow us to gain control of that missile. When it launches, we will be able to control where it goes too. It is scheduled to launch in five minutes. So, we need to know what we want to do with it.”
“Are your friends still at NASA at the moment?”
“No sir they are not. May I point out that there are several boosters at NASA that we can use to send supplies to Mars. Franklin had been planning to send 100 probes in total, after the Charon crew would take control of the colony.”
“I’m not suggesting we destroy NASA’s complex, but have the nuke explode somewhere near NASA where they’ll have to evacuate due to radiation, but not where it will kill people. Then when NASA has no people there, we go in with HASMAT suits obviously and take what we can.”
At that point someone burst in the room and said “sorry prime minister but we just received intel, the Americans have launched their missile. We can’t take control of it.”
“Corbett?”
“Fuck, the Americans must have found the bug I swear I didn’t know this would happen. Can we try and self-destruct it?”
“We have no control of it what so ever. I’ve already informed England, they’ve sounded the four-minute warning.” They sat their trying to think of a solution, a live news feed from England were being displayed on a TV screen. Two fighter jets had been deployed to intercept the nuke. They found the nuke and were able to destroy it without causing harm to England. For the next few hours they talked about a plan, and what was going to happen in the next few weeks. They decided they would send 100 probes to Mars and Load the Charon and Demeter that had returned from Mars with supplies, and send them. They would make more than 100 launches though as decoys to stop the main probes being tampered with.
After eight hours another broadcast started on the TV, it showed an aerial shot of the White House. There were a dozen fighter jets over the area and three bombs dropped. The White House was destroyed.
Then another secretary came into the room with a message and gave it to the prime minister. He read it to everyone in the room. “Some of Europe are for sending supplies and will help us, others won’t. This is where the nations stand. The UK, Greece, France, Italy, Canada, Germany, Croatia, Switzerland, and Austria have offered their support in helping us supply Mars. NASA have said they want to help and regret letting Martian corps buy them. Russia, USA, China, Japan, Ukraine, Spain, Netherlands, and Poland have agreed to help the US stop us from supplying mars and have said they would use any force necessarily.”
On the 28th of June 1914 the great Archduke Franz Ferdinand was assassinated. Through a treaty of Nations one month later this started the first world war which lasted for four years. In the summer of 1939 Germany invaded Poland and on the 1st of September this started the second world war which lasted six years. On the 25 of December in 2030 America bombed Syria and Afghanistan. This caused a lot of dispute between nations, and caused the third world war which went nuclear. The only reason that Earth wasn’t wiped out was because the cost of nuclear weapons was expensive and the countries such as Syria couldn’t afford to retaliate. This war lasted for three years. On the 4th of August in 2045 the first permanent settlers landed on Mars, other countries such as Asia, China were angered at the amount of funding that were going into the Martian project and not helping others that were in poverty. This started the fourth world war which didn’t go nuclear. It lasted one year. On the 16th of September 2100 the corrupt governments in the Philippines, China, Afghanistan, and other countries went into war with each other and started the fifth world war by making allies with other countries such as America and Russia. This war did not go nuclear and lasted 10 years. On the 28th of May 2146 when Mars saved Europe from a meteor, parts of Europe wanted to help Mars others didn’t agree with the US. America launched a nuke at England, who retaliated and caused the sixth world war, this war started nuclear, and would end nuclear. It would be the war that not only ended all wars, it would end everything.




Chapter 12: The truth

It was 7pm in the capital of Mars. The Charon had arrived, but three probes had landed at city Alpha two. They hadn’t received any transmission since they had successfully taken supplies from the Demeter. The colonists were still in control of the other two bases. The odd hostage had died trying to escape or communicate with the capital. Everyone in the capital was anxious as this could very well be there last night on Mars if James and Steve hadn’t managed to take control of the Charon. 
John was in the satellite room and working on various programs and hacks that he thought could be useful if they survived the night. “Mind if I join you.” Amber was standing in the door way. “I could use some help with a program I have to write.”
“Sure, mind if I ask, why are you still at school you’re in your twenties?”
“Well there isn’t a university up here, and my high school wasn’t very good. So, I’m learning what I need to up here while working in here with you guys part time.”
They sat and talked for a while. It was around 8:30 now. “John when are you going to ask me out.” John was gobsmacked. He had always liked her, but he never did anything simply because he thought there was too much on her mind. He sat there for a minute thinking how to answer and when he said nothing, she leaned forward and kissed him passionately.
“Get a room you two.” Laura was standing in the doorway. “John, I need to talk with you for a minute.”
He walked up to Laura “I’m sorry.”
Laura interrupted him “don’t be, just take her back to your place when we’re finished here. It’s About time you two got together. Any luck communicating with the Charon?”
“No, I don’t think they’re ignoring us it looks like there’s been some damage to the communications array on the ship. I can send them information, but I can’t get anything back. I’ve tried making their signals bounce of a satellite but no luck, I would have tried more, but I got distracted sorry.”
“It’s alright John, I think we all want to be spending tonight with the people we care about, but not all of us can.” She paused and looked up as if to look up at the stars.
John pointed upwards to the left and said “actually, the Charon’s over there, I’m sure James would be with you if he could.”
“Go home John and when your uh done being distracted ask, her what that pie was it she made me try, I can’t remember, started with e.”
John nodded in approval and he and Amber went back to his quarters. John had suspected that Laura had feelings for James but never questioned it. Early next morning John and Amber were lying in bed together happy and just talking. “Laura said for me to ask you something I didn’t understand the question, I think it was a code phrase or something, something about pie and e.”
Amber sighed, she didn’t know how to react, “she actually said that to you.”
John nodded “Yes. It is a code isn’t it Amber what does it mean.”
Amber looked at him. “Well it’s a code alright. It means she trusts you enough, and think the times right for me to tell you the truth. Now please listen and save questions for the end. Understand I’ve hated keeping this from you, but it was important that no one knew. Promise me you’ll at least try not to freak out.”
John thought for a moment, what could she possibly be hiding what could she be frightened of, he was about to find out but wasn’t sure if he wanted to. “Ok Amber I promise.”
“What I’m about to tell you doesn’t change anything, I’m still me and it hasn’t affected the way I feel about you or anything.”
John just sighed, “what is it?”
“Well here it goes I cannot tell you my brother’s real name, as it would endanger his identity and us as well. You know him as Xander. Technically he’s my half-brother, he’s eight years older than me. I met him first about six years ago when he was visiting our school. NASA were doing a propaganda campaign. My mother had told me of my half-brother and how she hadn’t been allowed to see him after he was born, that’s a story for another time. Anyway, I knew I had a half-brother and what his last name was, we have different last names. So, when he appeared at school, I introduced myself to him and we met for a cup of coffee afterwards.
“He said tension was building between Martian corps and Mars. He thought a war could break out. He wanted someone on Mars that could tell him what was going on. Now I should explain on paper we’re not related. When my mother and his father split, she changed her first and last name. I volunteered to go, but he said NASA would never pick me as a candidate because I was still in school. But because I was 18, I could enter the lottery. So, I did, and against all or no odds I won the lottery and could go to mars. He made me memorise a system he wanted to use for communication with Mars and Earth. I couldn’t write it down in case it got found. He said to find someone I could trust on Mars and who was smart.
“So, when I came here about four years ago, I met James and I trusted him, and the way he could calculate things in his head I knew he was smart. So, we spent a few weeks together which we told people we were dating, but weren’t I told him the method of communication my brother had suggested. He pointed out we couldn’t keep saying my brother, so we had to think of a name. We we’re watching an episode of an old 20th 21st Century tv show at the time while working all this out so we came up with Xander. That night we had the program finished. We tested it through the supercomputer and my brother sent back a reply. I verified it was him because he told me the first message he would send. We made finishing touches on the program and we stopped spending time together so not to arouse suspicion. About a month after that he told Laura. We agreed that if anyone ever found out about Xander we would lie about the dates and how long we had been communicating with him, so we wouldn’t endanger Xander’s identity.
“You’ve been very calm about this throughout the whole story are you ok?”
John didn’t know what to think, she was the reason they were in contact with Xander, she had basically given them the upper hand in this war. “Well it’s a lot of information to process, but it could have been a lot worse. Do you still keep in contact with him?”
“Every now and then, I can’t contact him as much as I would like, but I send him the odd message now and then. I can’t say any personal things though like hey bruv, or anything like that because it could endanger his position on Earth. He is NASAs most valuable employee. He got on with Franklin, the representatives from Martian corps very well.”
“Ok, well I don’t think less of you, I think more of you.” There was a beep on his intercom at the wall. He picked up his communicator and it had a message from Laura. “We better put some clothes on, Laura wants us to meet her at her office, there is some news of the mission, and the mystery of the ore has been answered.”




Chapter 13: The rebellion

James was sitting in his temporary quarters. Still thinking of how Steve died, there wasn’t enough food for him to survive to get Earth, Steve would have died of starvation by now. One of the crew that were confined to quarters had hacked into the probe and had remote controlled it. They had sent a patch, to the probe that had reconfigured the system to make it talk directly to Charon, so the probe would have authority from the Charon not James’ laptop. That crew member was now in the ships brig and James was in his quarters. A beep came from the computer. James opened it and there was a message asking James to come to the ships dining room.
The Charon had just finished decelerating and entered Mars’ orbit. James and the five others were sitting around the table. The captain spoke first. “It’s worse than we thought. We can’t send any communications. They have somehow managed to send us signals and instructions, but we haven’t got communications of any sort. We can’t talk to the capital, for all they know we are the bad guys. And you and Steve failed your mission.”
“So, we take the pod down to the capital and explain what’s happened.”
“We could do that James but from what they’ve told us the other two bases are still under siege of the Colonists. They think there are nukes on this vessel, and that they are getting reinforcements. That was the plan if war ever broke out and they successfully captured the bases. We have supplies and lots of Weapons on board. They’re expecting reinforcements not us.”
James felt a tinge of hope for a moment. “What are you saying captain?”
“We could go down to the capital and tell them everything.”
James smiled “I’m sensing an or here.”
“Or we go down take control of communications, send a message to the capital tell them where we are, and that you have successfully put the nukes on the meteor. We have a lay out of what the plan was, where hostages would be kept etc. We free the hostages take control of the railway and send supplies to the north and capital. Once we take control of city Alpha two, we get reinforcements from the capital and go and take the polar base. Also, to communicate with Earth they’ll have to use the Demeter to re transmit to the other satellites.”
James for the first time in months felt happy, this would get them the upper hand in this war. “Alright let’s do it. What about the others that are up here?”
“When we gain control of the colony, we’ll send a probe up to collect them.”
It took them a few hours to get ready. They stocked up with weapons and oxygen tanks. They had to be careful when shooting firearms on Mars. However, City Alpha 2 was in what was known as the atmosphere dome. It was made of the same material as Hab canvas, but it was very thick and could withstand being hit with small bullets. The big dome had an atmospheric regulator to keep pressure and that was it. Trees and other plants had been grown in the dome, so an oxygenator didn’t have to be used. This meant that they could go outside of the base, now without an EVA suit and still breath. It was basically an artificial out door environment.
They landed three kilometres away from the base and managed to sneak in through an out of service Air lock. The out of service air lock still worked it had just been deemed as unsafe to use, unsafe meant there was 20% chance of the air lock ripping, it was just a safety precaution as they had learned lessons from science fiction.
James and the captain headed towards the main communications centre while the other three went to the quarters area to check it was empty. The other four would then go to an area and release a group of hostages, of the hostages that couldn’t fight would be taken to the quarters. Those that could fight would help the other three take control of the railway to the capital to send for reinforcements.
City Alpha 2 was very different than the capital. It wasn’t just one integrated complex like the capital. There were four. There was the complex where everyone slept, the admin complex that handled communications and data processing etc, a food processing complex and an agricultural farm. There were also several farms outside, not in a complex in the dome simply because there was more room and it was easier to tend to crops. They had smaller farms in buildings in case something happened like the dome breached.
James had been to city Alpha two a few times before. So, he led the captain to the main complex. The captain had an access card that let him in because they were supposed to be reinforcements for the Colonists. The entrance they used was not the furthest from where they wanted to go, nor was it the closest, so that if they were spotted it wasn’t apparent to where they were going. “Ok captain Rogers we are about ten minutes away from where we want to go, there are three access points between here and the main communications area.”
“Right our intel says there is one person on each side of the access points, and there are three people in the communications room and one person outside of it.”
They walked along the corridor being as quiet as they could, James was in front of Captain Rogers so if they needed to, it could seem like the captain was holding James at gunpoint. They got to the first access point and the captain began to speak. “Prisoner transfer from cellblock 1138.”
The guard just looked at him and said. “Yeah mate the brig is in the opposite direction.”
“I’m taking him for questioning.”
“It’s 7 o’clock in the morning.”
James shot the guard; his gun had a silencer on it. The guard fell quietly, “it was a boring conversation anyway.” James grabbed the guard’s card and opened the access point, before the other guard could react James hit him on the head with the butt of his gun. “Grab their uniforms, we’ll look less conspicuous, grab their walkie talkies that way we can hear what’s going on.”
They changed into their uniforms and continued down the corridor, the next guard stopped them, the Captain spoke “we’re just grabbing a cup of coffee.” The guard let them through, and same with the next access point. They continued through the corridor, and just before they came to the communications room the captain stopped and said, “she won’t let us through, this is restricted access, should we do help.” James nodded in approval and laid down on the ground. The captain yelled “HELP!” the guard outside of the room came and the captain said, “I think he’s having a heart attack.”
“I have medical experience let me look.” She bent over James to check him, the captain knocked her on the back of the head, while James punched her in the face. She fell to the ground with a shocked look on her face.
James got up and said. “She’ll be able to put two separate ACC claims for that, right captain now for the fun bit.” They went into the communications room and everyone looked at them, all with in arms reach of their firearms. “Hello boys, how do you want do this. Just lay on the ground and pretend we over powered you, or do we actually over power you.” They started reaching for their firearms. “Option three it is.” James and captain Rogers had two guns each in their hands, and shot the three people in the legs and arms. They went over and knocked them all unconscious.
The room had several monitors with security footage of the complex. James brought up the communications program and said, “you wouldn’t know the password, would you?”
“No sorry, didn’t know there was one.”
“No matter.” James managed to hack into the system and found something. “Um we have a problem; it would seem they have been in communication with Earth or may been. The Demeter delivered them a knew communication system last month. It would appear it was a big one. Designed to communicate with Earth in real time without delay. They’ve only just managed to get it working a few minutes ago. The main satellite is several kilometres north of here. I’m sending a message to the capital now.”
James’ walkie talkie was buzzing, and a voice was saying, “Neals we believe someone has broken into the complex. Neals are you there? Neals?” Neals was the first guard they had encountered and killed.
James spoke into his walkie talkie “Attention, Attention Neals is dead fuck head.”
“Then to whom do I have the mis pleasure of speaking to.”
“You can call me Mal. Now listen hear matey, me and my army here will give you one chance to surrender otherwise you’ll be dead by nightfall.”
“We shall see about that Mal.” Then the radio went silent.
James sent his message to the capital, and looked at one of screens. “Captain your crew mates have released one of the groups of hostages. I’m going to try and run a program that will divert complete control of the city to here, or at least to the capital.”
The captain was sitting at another computer and acknowledged his response, then he found something. “James look at this. It’s a file called Mars our salvation, it’s encrypted, and Password protected. It can’t be opened unless it’s verified and opened from an IP address on Earth.”
James looked it at it, and couldn’t open it. “You monitor the progress of what we are doing here, with strong communication with Earth I might be able to send the file to Xander.” James created a communication channel that would go to Earth, and be activated when the receiving person connected to it. No matter where Xander was he should receive it. He sent the file to Earth and Xander replied saying.
Cheers for this John I’ll work on it straight away. If you don’t hear from me it’s because I’m busy, things have taken quite a turn here on Earth.
“James they’re on their way to the rail, several of the colonists have gathered there. How’s that complete control coming along?”
“Not very well. I have to give control to the capital. But it will take time.”
“They don’t have time they’re there now.” The battle was short and bloody. The Martians managed to take control of the railway. It was 50 hostage’s vs 20 Colonists. 30 Hostages survived. “That was brutal. They’ve sent the vehicles to the capital. We should have reinforcements within the hour. Hang on incoming message from the capital.”
Laura’s face appeared on one of the screens. “Hi guys, we’re sending as many reinforcements as we can. I won’t be coming with them though. I’m needed here unfortunately. Your orders are to free all hostages with minimal casualties as possible. When all hostages are free put those that took control in the brig. Then when you have secured control, go and take control of the polar base.”
“All right Laura. Hey, I’m getting a live transmission from Xander on Earth. I’ll put it through to you with three-way communications.”
Xander’s face appeared on the screen in the capital and in the communications room. “Hi guys. I managed to open the file and I’ve read it. I know what the ore is used for.”
“Xander can you wait I’ll call my colleagues in.  John and Amber will want to know about this.” Xander nodded in approval. John and Amber came in five minutes later and apologised because they had been busy. Xander began to speak. “It has been discovered the ore has very practical properties on Earth. The simplest explanation is this.
“When a small but precise electrical charge is introduced to the ore and If it’s vibrating at the specific frequency, it gets hot, very hot. The basics of how nuclear reactors work is the uranium gets very hot from its decay, it gets hot enough that it boils water, and the steam turns turbines and that generates electricity. The problem is that it leaves a lot of radioactive waste.
“The ore gets hot enough that it can replace the nuclear power source. Without the waste. It was classified straight away. That’s why Martian corps can make so much money. They sell the ore to nuclear power companies. 99% percent of the world’s nuclear reactors have been converted to run on Martian ore. It takes a tenth of the electricity to work than what nuclear power does. I’m working on sending you the exact specifications needed so you can create one on the polar ice cap.
“Also, they found with another electric charge, and a different frequency that it can decay like a radioactive substance. It decays like the argon fuel in the ships to provide constant acceleration. The Demeter one has been fitted with one of these engines to run on Martian ore for fuel. That’s why it was delayed all those months ago just before the war started.
“Now time for the bad news. We’re fighting the sixth world war and I’m in New Australia now. We’re working on sending you a large supply mission. We’re going to send several probes. I won’t say how much in case this call is being monitored, but hopefully after the mission you will have everything you need to be independent.” Then the room in the background started shaking and the transmission was cut off.




Chapter 14: The Siege

“James what happened?” Laura was still talking to James, whatever had caused the transmission to stop had happened on Earth.
“We lost his transmission something must be happening on Earth. Well now we know why they want the Ore so much. They can produce electricity very efficiently without any waste. If it can be used for reactors and produce electricity then in time it could be used to power cars, buses, hell even trains. With Mars being the only source of this ore no wonder they’ve been trying to retain control of Mars, and no wonder they send so many people to work in the mines.”
“It is fascinating James. But right now, I want you to focus on trying to contact Xander. When the reinforcements arrive, I want you to communicate with them and co-ordinate the battle to take control. However. I want you to stay in the communications room.”
James was shocked. “What, why?”
“God damn it Jim you’re a Mathematician not a soldier.” With that Laura ceased her transmission.
James spent the next few minutes trying to establish communications with Earth with no success. He was able to access the main computer using his login, and with having access to a computer in city Alpha two. He used a remote over ride to have complete control of city alpha two, sent to the capital. Since it was his user code that had allowed the override to commence, he could give 100% control to any terminal in the colony. “I’ve got it, I’m giving control to everything in this city to us.”
“How did you manage that.”
“Emergency override. If an incident happens at a city, and a high-ranking citizen activates their program and someone at the capital that has a high clearance ranking, activates it as well complete control goes to the user in the capital. Using my remote access in the capital I made it as if I had authorised it in the capital. But what I forgot was I actually am legally a citizen here as well. So, I have my own city Alpha two ID and I’m high ranking which means I can request for emergency override from here. So basically, in the capital I have complete control of city Alpha two. Using my authority in the capital I can give control to any user, or building I need to in city Alpha two. We could have done this earlier but no one in city Alpha two requested for an override. So, I gave complete control of every system to this room. Now I’m going to go and meet the reinforcements which should be here in a minute. I need you to be my eyes and ears. I’ll send a team here just in case someone tries to bother you.”
The captain looked at him and said, “Laura wanted you to stay here, let me go.”
“I’ve been here several times before and that son of a bitch killed my mother.” The captain nodded in approval. James took the ammo from the people that were unconscious in the room and said. “Better get a team to take these guys to the infirmary, that’ll be the first place we take back.”
“Alright, good luck.”
James walked to the tracks and stopped and took ammo from the unconscious guards. He arrived at the tracks just as the reinforcements from the capital arrived. He began to speak. “Alright guys, I’m in charge, I know this city well. For over 100 years Earth has dictated what we can and can’t do on this planet. We have been taking orders from a bunch of faceless men in suits 50 Million miles away. We’ve been fighting this war for over nine months now. Still certain events from colonists and Earth have controlled what we do. The nukes from Earth forced us to act to save the colony. The colonists that hold the hostages here are forcing us to take action, and are forcing us to live off rations and live in uncomfortable conditions. Well I say fuck Earth, we gave them the opportunity to trade the ore with us and allow us to make our own decisions they chose to decline that agreement.
“For the last nine months the people here have lived in pain and suffering, and we couldn’t come within five kilometres without hostages been shot. Let’s end there suffering, we reclaim the homes of the people who have been held hostage for nine months. We fight for those who can’t fight. Today we send a message to Earth. They aren’t the boss of us, that without us they will surely suffer, we tell Earth that they have fucked off the wrong people for too fuck’n long. Today we tell them to go to hell. Now who’s with me?” Everyone cheered and applauded at James’ speech. He went up to the four that came with him from the Charon. “Return to the communications room to protect the captain if he needs it. Take another three people with you to take the injured to the infirmary when we have recaptured it.”
James lead the reinforcements and the remaining hostages to the main hospital area. Twenty Colonists were holding approximately 70 people hostages there. They would take the hospital/infirmary area then they would go to the main areas where people were being kept hostages. When they had enough people, they would go and take control of the farms. In total James had 80 men following him, when they acquired more people to fight with them, they would split up and take control in different areas.
The hospital was attached to the main complex, but was large enough to have eight different air locks. However only 4 airlocks were ever active at any given time. All air locks in city Alpha two were like that and they alternated which one to use every two months to prevent too much wear and tear. This had angered the capital when city Alpha two had been introduced to this as because of the atmospheric dome the air locks hardly ever had to pressurize so they mainly served as normal doors.
James and his men spread around the hospital and entered using the inactive air locks. The main hostages were in the waiting area and were being held hostage by ten guards. The rest of the hostages were people who worked at the hospital and were being kept in different areas. James lead the attack against the secondary group of colonists in the wards where people such as the mayor etc were being held captive. James had an ear piece in to talk to the captain and the leaders of the other teams. He whispered into his ear piece “all right, on the count of three captain turn off the lights, and on four, walk in, and on five fire.” Everyone confirmed. “Ok, one, two, three…” The main lights in the hospital turned off making everything pitch black. The main leaders of the groups had night vision goggles but there wasn’t enough for everyone. So, people used their communicators and head phones for the captain to give them instructions on where to shoot etc. “four…” Everyone slowly walked into their designated areas. “Five.” The gun firing begun, after a couple of seconds the lights turned back on, so the teams could see exactly where to shoot without risk of damaging everything else. The lights turning off was only so James and his teams had the element of surprise.
James killed three of the colonists that were holding hostages. His small team quickly took control of the area they had been assigned to. It only took ten minutes at most to take complete control of the hospital area. James talked to the captain. “How are we doing?”
“Done, you guys control the hospital. Looks like you guys had no casualties which is a bonus. Several injuries though. Um, looks like our presence is known. They’re gathering up all the colonists outside in the main square. There are some colonists with hostages at farms, and at the tracks but everyone else is at the square. I estimate maybe a hundred colonists.” The captain had been monitoring the situation through the security cameras in place in City alpha 2.
“Alright, I’ll send some teams to take the smaller ones apart from the railways and I’ll lead the attack on the main group.” James did just that. He took his men to the main farms and stopped just out of sight and talked into his walkie talkie. “Can I please talk to the fuck head in charge of this siege.”
The smooth voice came over the walkie talkie and said, “this is him cowboy. Your causing me some difficulty here Mal. Stop and no more hostages will die.”
“Well here’s the thing, if I give myself up will you let the hostages go?”
“No but I’ll move them into the complex at least. Will you tell your men to stand down?”
“Yes, I’ll also send them into the complex.” James took his hand of the walkie talkie for a minute and said to the captain. “On my mark I want you to open the main air lock. He won’t move his men into the complex. When the hostages are safe, I want my men to take out any remaining colonists in the complex and make sure the hostages are safe.”
“You’ve gone quiet cowboy.”
“I’m waiting for word that you’ve let the hostages go into the complex.”
“Once your men are inside first, I will let the hostages in.”
James gave the order for his men to go into the closest complex. “They’re in.”
“Thank you, James. Yes, I know who you are I have always known. I have a very detailed report on you. But I thought I would play along for a while. Opening the airlock will kill you, me and the crops. You should know that I have moved most of the crops to the outside of the complex, if you depressurise the dome you destroy the crops, there isn’t enough reserves in the pressurised farms to ration.”
“I understand.”
Gordon, the leader of the colonists of city Alpha two stood in the open farms, with most of his men standing behind him, nearly one hundred men. It had been ten minutes and Gordon believed that James wasn’t coming. Once James came into range his men would shoot him. He saw someone coming from a distance. He looked through a pair of binoculars, he couldn’t see his face. But the way he walked. The casual track pants and the red hoody was unmistakably James. “Goodbye mister Singer I’ll see you in hell. Fire.” Just as Gordon gave the order the air rushed out of the Dome. Anyone that was outside couldn’t breathe. The outside of city Alpha two lost pressure and everyone that wasn’t wearing an EVA suit was killed.
James knew that he would be killed the moment he came into range. He was still wearing the bulk of his EVA suit but not a helmet. He left that in the communications room. One of his men brought him a helmet, and one of the Colonists who had survived, and a small bag of clothes. James spoke to one of the colonists. “Put these clothes on and walk towards the colonists over there. Yes, you’re going to die. If you don’t do as I say you’ll spend the rest of your life in the brig and be starved to the point of death, then fed and brought back to health until it starts all over again.” The man did as he was told. “Captain when they try and shoot the decoy open the air lock.”
“What about the crops?”
“I believe he will be bluffing, no way would they risk their crops like that.” Thirty seconds after that the air lock opened. The colonists outside were killed.
The air lock stayed open for a minute then closed. James took off his helmet and went up to the colonists to make sure they were dead. He thought they were, he felt a gun on the back of his suit and he heard Gordon say, “turn around.” James recognised the voice; it was the voice of the person who had sent them the message all those months ago. It was the man who had killed his mother.
As James turned around, he bit his lip so hard it bled, “I thought I killed you all.”
“I thought you might have a trick up your sleeve, I hid inside the complex while my twin brother was in charge out here, do you know who I am.” The man had a smirk on his face.             
James’ choked over his own words. “You’re the son of a bitch who killed my mother.”
“So, it was your mother I killed, I thought it was. That’s why you disobeyed your superiors’ orders, you should know she died screaming, she begged me not kill her, you broke the rules, Mr Singer how does that feel?” The man chuckled.
James just about vomited. “Well as a mathematician I hardly ever get to break the rules, math doesn’t work otherwise, but it feels good, not as good as killing you will be.” All the pain and guilt that James had been burying were boiling up. He focused all his energy on the man.
“You seem to forget Mr Singer I’m the one with the gun you are not. You have killed people in this war, but for self-defence or because the situation called for, no I don’t think you’ll walk away from this one at…” The man never finished his sentence. James was wearing one of Earth’s EVA suits from the Charon, the new suits that had a small firearm built into the arm of the suit. The bullets fired not by igniting gun powder, but by releasing pressurised CO2. James had used this to shoot the man, he was now dead.
James didn’t feel satisfied he spoke into his ear piece “The last one of them is dead I shot him first. Captain is everyone done fighting?”
“You did what needed to be done. Yes James, the remaining colonists have surrendered and so has the polar base. However, their leader was not bluffing most of the crops were outside. We can’t produce crops as efficiently now.”
“Well fuck.”




Chapter 15: The Final battle

Three weeks had passed since Corbett had uncovered the secrets of the Martian ore. Corbett was in a top-secret military base co-ordinating the launches to Mars. Earth had lost all communications with Mars; computer viruses had stopped them from being able to access the long-range satellites. Corbett made himself a cup of coffee, the war had gotten so bad that he was drinking what was probably the last of the coffee beans in the southern hemisphere.
The US had created a new biological weapon that killed anyone it touched in an hour, that was in its most dilute form. It killed its victim by attacking the neural pathways in the brain, it attacked the brain and stopped it from functioning. The victim would experience an excruciating migraine and faint, after they fainted the victim would never wake up. Most of Ireland had been wiped out in 24 hours from it. Corbett walked to his station and he bumped into the General on his way, “how are we doing General?”
The General sighed, “We’ve lost the old New Zealand.”
“Lost what do you mean lost?”
“Its population is now zero. The Russians sent four nukes at it, three bombs containing the biological weapon and they made all nuclear reactors over load.”
Corbett sipped his coffee, “I thought that the nuclear reactors was replaced with Martian ore reactors.”
“Most have, only a dozen or so run on old fashioned Nuclear power, old New Zealand it seems was one of them. Are we launching today?”
“Yes sir, probe 90 will be launched today.”
“Good, get to it Corbett.”
Probes were being launched every day or two, but some were decoys. Some were labelled decoys and had real supplies in them, some were labelled decoys and were. Corbett was the one that co-ordinated the launches. He also organised the crates that were loaded onto each probe, decoy probes had crates full of rocks, but would weigh the same as real supply probes, making it harder to tell which were real and Decoys. The probes would wait in orbit and would be sent to Mars all at the same time.
The Charon and Demeter were also loaded with supplies. Corbett was the only one that knew that today would be the launch of the 100th real probe. Ten more would be launched and would have the odd supply crate on them, but after today the supplies could be sent to Mars.
Corbett sat down at his desk. Today’s probe was officially being launched from Sydney; but was really being launched from a top-secret facility in the outback near Ears rock. Corbett logged onto his computer and remotely launched the last probe. It was a success.
The General then barged in the room and said to Corbett. “How many have we really launched, Corbett, I understand if you don’t want to tell me the real number, but we need as many people fighting as we can. We just received word of an assault being launched on England, it is planned for three days’ time, but they are the only country left of the old UK. If you have launched 100 supply probes can you say so, please because we need as many people as possible.”
Corbett sighed, “the last probe was just launched sir and has rendezvoused with the rest of the probes, give me an hour and I can send them to Mars.”
“Ok Corbett meet me in my office in 65 minutes.”
Corbett went to the observatory where there were supercomputers and telescopes. He pulled up the record where the last position of Mars was relative to earth from a computer. He ran a series of calculations to figure out what the correct Mars position was. Corbett double checked it by adjusting the telescope and being able to see that Mars was where he had calculated it. He then prepared a route that would take the supplies to Mars as quickly as possible.
This was the most important mission to him. The supplies that were being sent was enough to make the colony self-sustainable. He had organised everything himself. He made sure there was enough material for the capital to build an atmospheric dome. He sent several computer components and the relevant technologies to help make new ones. He had sent a lot of frozen crops for them to eat straight away and protein packets, he sent lots of fertiliser, seeds for growing new crops, grass seed, tree plants, he sent enough materials to expand the capital. He sent designs on how to expand the cities for the next 20 years, he also sent Embryos, of cows bulls, sheep, pigs, chickens and a few other animals so they could artificially grow them in there machine and breed farm animals.
Life would be hard for the colony for a while, but they would survive, he was sure of it. Corbett ran diagnostics on everything, then he sent the probes on their way. The decoy probes that had already being launched however stayed in orbit, Corbett had a special surprise in them.
Corbett logged off the computer. He looked at his watch, fifteen minutes before he had to be at the Generals office. He went to the food court and went to the dairy area. He grabbed a pie and an Energy drink and went to pay for them. “Hey Al. Just the pie and the drink mate, chuck it on the account.”
“It’s on the house mate. Heard you’re going on a big assignment soon.”
“Thanks. You’ve heard more than me mate, I’m on my way to the General’s office now.”
“You’ve been in New Australia for what a month and you’re already starting to sound like us mate. Hey good luck.”
“Cheers Al.” Corbett ate his pie and drunk his drink on his way to the General’s office. He arrived at his office and knocked on his door.
“Come in Corbett.” Corbett entered, and the General motioned for him to sit down. “Did you get the supply mission on its way without problem.”
“Yip, I estimate that it’ll get to Mars in maybe eight to nine months.”
The General pulled a file out of his desk draw and put it on his desk. “As I said earlier there are plans for an attack on England. The prime minister and the King have been evacuated already.
They are on a remote island I believe it was called Madagascar. They are safe there; they had already planned to leave England and have been travelling for the last week in disguise. Basically, we need you to extract them and bring them here where they’ll be safe.”
“Ok, you know I’m not a secret agent right, pushing buttons and making things happen in space is where I shine.”
“I know Corbett, they specifically asked for you, they are impressed with you on how you’ve been feeding information to Mars all this time. You will leave here in the next hour or two where you’ll walk to the harbour where there is a boat waiting for you, they’ll take you to Madagascar and bring you back here. The king helped us with getting the probes to send to mars so we owe him a favour.
“We didn’t want to use a military ship or anything official, so we found a private yacht that has been travelling around the state of New Zealand and New Australia since the war began, just surviving of the sea and grabbing supplies from abandoned cities etc. We’ve paid them with enough food and survival gear, so they’ll be able to survive at sea for months on end if they want. Now I understand you have some special probes and satellites in orbit.”
Corbett smiled he’d been waiting for this. “Yes, sir I do, I also have the necessary equipment to remote pilot a fighter jet if you need me to. I can do it all from a special case of gadgets.”
The General smiled, “and you say you’re not a spy. Monitor situations from the ship if you can. I do want you to try and help the squadron hold off the attack against England. But the King and Prime Minister are your top priority. Here’s all the information you need to know.” The General handed Corbett the file. “Grab what you need. The boats name is the Interceptor.”
Corbett took the file then left. Corbett went to his quarters and grabbed his backpack filled with the essentials. He then grabbed his suit case which had his gadgets in it. He left his quarters and went to the elevator, he was on floor -15, he pushed the button labelled 0(G). The elevator slowly took him to the ground floor while he read the file. When he had been taken to the secret base, he had been blind folded and taken there, so he didn’t know exactly where they were. When he had used the telescope, he had been using a remote control one. On his end it felt like a real telescope and he looked through it like a real one, however the real telescope was in another location.
He exited the building and looked behind him, he gasped in awe, the secret base had been under the Sydney Opera house. He walked to the Harbour and a young woman in her late teens came up to him and said, “there was once a jolly swagman who ate a snake.”
Corbett knew exactly she meant “He could live off it.”
The young woman replied “but it tasted like shit. You’re Corbett?”
“Yes, your Sue?” The woman nodded and took him to a small shed that were full of small dinghies. She took out one for her and one for Corbett. They took them to the harbour where they lowered them in.
“Follow me exactly, the Americans have been around here, left a few mines they have.” Corbett nodded in approval. They had detected the ships a week or so ago. They slowly rowed out past all the boats and out of site. They stopped in what seemed to be the middle of no where. “Stay here.” Sue pulled a bag on her back and pulled a cord out of it and put it on her mouth and pulled a pair of goggles over her eyes. She jumped into the ocean.
Corbett waited for what seemed like forever then he saw the most bizarre thing. He saw a 25-foot yacht rise out of the water. The exterior was completely covered in solar panels. Sue was standing on the deck and threw a rope to Corbett. “Tie that around the front and bring my dinghy in when I pull you past it. After ten minutes Corbett had been brought on board and the dinghies were tucked away safely. There were four other people on the boat, the oldest was 22, and Sue the youngest was 19.
The oldest was a young man called Alex. “High Corbett, I know you have a lot of questions about this ship, and I’ll answer them in time. It was my grandfathers, he spent every weekend working on this boat, modifying it changing it. He died before he finished it and left it to me, I finished it for him. It’s not a submarine but it can be submerged comfortably 10 feet underwater, enough to avoid detection from other boats and planes. Me and my friends here were planning on going away for the weekend in this boat when the war started. It can sail; however, it also has a small electronic jet engine, that’s why we have solar panels on the outside. They are water proof but they don’t absorb the sunlight as efficiently under water.”
Alex showed Corbett where he would be staying, they didn’t have their own quarters or anything. But there was just enough room for Corbett. Alex explained that they couldn’t travel while submerged underwater, and they only ever submerged when they needed to. It would take a week to get to Madagascar.
On the third day into their voyage Corbett told them exactly what he had to do, and that he would be using a small satellite, he had made sure it wasn’t easily tracked, but there was still a small risk. Alex reluctantly agreed to let Corbett participate in the battle over England. Corbett set up the small satellite, it was no larger than a tv aerial. He set up his laptop and logged in. Corbett connected his joystick and VR helmet to the laptop. He also connected his remote-control rudders to the laptop. The laptop wasn’t a simulator, it just sent the instructions through the satellite and sent back what was happening.
Once he began the program his VR helmet lit up. It appeared as if he was in a cockpit of a fighter plane and it looked very realistic. Modern planes mainly used voice commands rather than flicking switches. But what he was flying was an experimental project. It looked like a fighter plane and could be flown manually but could also be controlled from a computer. He could hear the radio chatter from the base his plane was at. There were 15 planes in this squadron, 5 of which were remote control. This squadron was based in what was left of Liverpool. They would rendezvous with another squadron and would then proceed to intercept the Americans.
Corbett spoke into his head set. “This is red five standing by.”
A voice spoke over the communication system. “Alright boys start your engines and go for it.” Corbett clicked the big red button that he saw on his joy stick. Controller joy sticks were universal for any plane. They were full of touch sensors, basically the whole thing was a touch pad except for the trigger. When you selected a plane, it modelled the buttons on that plane’s joystick to the remote one. Remote pilots would also ware special gloves so that if their finger was over where a button should be, they would be able to feel as if they were pushing a button.
Corbett pushed the button that started his engines and took off. He wasn’t officially a pilot, but this system had been developed for people to be able to use who had very little training. The squadron successfully rendezvoused with the squadron from London, and they proceeded to intercept the Americans.
Half an hour into their flight Corbett spoke into his head set. “I have 40 bogeys on my scanners approximately 90 seconds away. Shall I attempt to communicate with them.”
Red leader replied, “no I’ll do it.” There was a moment silence. “Enemy aircraft we know you plan to attack England and we are prepared for it, surrender now to avoid further bloodshed.” There was no response. “Ok they are not responding. Shoot on site people.”
Corbett was in front of the squadron as were the other four remote planes. He saw one of the planes come into site. He fired on it instantly and it exploded. A hail of bullets streamed from the enemy planes and Corbett quickly pulled up and avoided them.  He then dove down and got behind one of the enemy fighters. He fired his ordinary weapons at them but that didn’t seem to affect them.
Red leaders voice came over the speakers. “Bullets are ineffective, that first one was a decoy. Use canons and missiles repeat use canons and missiles.” A beep sounded in Corbett’s cockpit. A missile had been fired at him. He looked at where the scanner was and waited right until the last second and pulled his plane up. The enemy plane that was in front of him got hit by the missile and exploded.
Corbett could see that two of their squadron had been killed. He saw one of his own planes ahead in front of him. He was coming right at him. “Red four your right at me. Red four.” To late he pulled the plane up and saw red four crash into one of the enemy planes.
Red leaders voice came over the speaker. “Red four was one of our remote pilots, we lost his signal about 10 seconds ago. Something must have happened to his connection.”
The battle was going bad. Corbett had taken out 10 enemy planes but most of their squadron had been defeated and the London squadron had lost five planes. Then Corbett noticed something; a small group of planes was following Red leader. Five enemy planes were following him, but the way they moved and fired was off. He launched his missile at the one in the middle and it blew up. The other four planes seemed to go nuts after that, they seemed to have no control and were losing control, it was as if no one was controlling them. They stopped firing and manoeuvring they just flew and started losing altitude. “Most of them are drones. I just shot one plane and the other four stopped attacking; the drones are linked to central planes.”
“Corbett.” Corbett looked around and asked if someone had spoken to him no one had. “Corbett!” Corbett’s VR helmet went blank he took it off. Alexander was looking at him. “Get everything inside, we have to sink in one minute. A group of jets are heading this way over a hundred of them. I don’t think they’ve seen us yet, but we have to move now.”
They manage to sink just in time Sue had remained outside the ship in her scuba gear and would stay just beneath the surface of the ocean. She would give them the ok when they had flown past.
First a minute past then ten. Corbett knew his plane would have crashed by now. The Interceptor could stay submerged for up to 12 hours, but Sue would only have two hours of air in her bag at any given time. An hour passed when Sue swam down to them and made a circle with her fingers, indicating it was safe to come up.
When the interceptor reached the surface, Alex glared at Corbett. “I hope those fighters weren’t looking for us.”
Sue stepped in “They weren’t they flew right over us, I waited for over an hour to make sure they wouldn’t come back. They’re heading for New Australia by the look of it.”
“Corbett can we warn New Australia, send them a message of some sort.”
“We could but they would intercept it and look for us. I do however have a small trick up my sleeve.”
“Well hop to it man I don’t care if you have to use that satellite again.”
Corbett once again connected his laptop to the small satellite. He pushed a few buttons and saw exactly where the planes were. “They’re about five minutes away from Perth.”
Sue hiccupped “That is still very populated, mostly undamaged by the war. Can you do something.”
Corbett nodded. He opened another application and once again connected his joystick. A map appeared on the laptop screen of objects on space he clicked on the one nearest New Australia and clicked on the button “deploy package.” A small package was released from that probe and he moved it to intercept the planes. It was a small UAV that had a strong computer built into it. It used Software John on Mars had developed and told him about. Most modern aircraft, including fighter jets had computers in them and had iron and nickel in them which were magnetic. The UAV had a very large electro magnet in it that had been activated. It was strong enough to pull a few planes close to it, and when it did they crashed into each other. The other planes were far enough away to not be affected by the magnet, so they adjusted their course.
They weren’t far enough away to avoid being affected by the software hack. Corbett could issue a command that would be relayed to every plane within range of the UAV. He typed the command Execute Self Missile. This caused all planes missiles to detonate with in the planes destroying all but three of the planes. Two of them had already used their missiles so Corbett typed a new command Electrical overload. This caused so much electricity to pass through the systems to fry the pilots and ignite the fuel tanks causing two of the planes to explode. Corbett switched to camera view and could see that one of the planes was the shape of a spitfire. He had heard of that project. Basically, an old spitfire was modified to fly with modern engines but wouldn’t have any computers on board. Corbett clicked the trigger that was on the stick and the UAV shot a missile at the plane eliminating it.
Sue hugged Corbett “That was amazing.”
“Thanks.” Corbett brought up a map of the world and was horrified. The major cities of the English Allies were under attack. Including Sydney. Corbett typed in a command. Execute Global defence. The UAVs were deployed all around the world attacking trying to defend the alliance. Suddenly the laptop erupted with sparks, the screen flicked out and smoke poured out of the keyboard then the aerial got hot. “Put that aerial and my suitcase in the water quick.” Alex and Sue chucked them overboard then saw a lot of bubbles burst from where it had been thrown. “In the case of someone trying to hack into the laptop or unauthorised communication, even to get a location it is rigged to self-destruct.”
Sue just sighed “well, we better get moving then in case someone did get our location.” Alex nodded. From now on the interceptor was always travelling, they took shifts during the night of navigating the boat.
The next two days were uneventful. On the sixth day they reached Madagascar. They could see a boat and several men with Machine guns on the beach. A military air base had been set up there. Corbett looked at the beach with his binoculars. “The king and Prime minister are being held prisoner on that beach. There is a stream that feeds in to the side, out of site from the beach there. Let’s go there and devise a plan.” They manoeuvred the boat out of site. Corbett began to speak “I’ll dive and swim in, I’ll try and rescue them and bring them back. Do you guys have an inflatable raft or something.” Alex nodded. “Ok I’ll carry it in with me, so I can enter the island undetected. If I’m not back in six hours leave without me and go anywhere you want. Don’t go back to Sydney, and don’t tell me where, just in case I’m captured and tortured, I don’t want you guys to suffer.”
Alex shook Corbett’s hand “Good luck Corbett. See you in a couple of hours aye.” Corbet nodded. Corbett put the Scooba gear on and sat on belted to the deck as the Intercepted submerged itself. Corbett safely swam ashore. He hid the raft in the bush. Alex had given him a small revolver to protect himself with, as that’s all Corbett could carry.
Corbett approached the camp and overheard two people talking. “Yeah the Australians had a base under the Sydney opera house apparently. It was destroyed a day or so ago. The first attack was a decoy to see what defences they had. Yesterday’s global attack was a success although they managed to launch an offensive against us as well.” Corbett inched forward more but accidentally stood on a twig. It snapped. The two thugs looked in his direction. “Allo, Allo what have we got here then.”
Corbett replied, “Just an innocent man looking for some food.”
“Hey that’s Corbett, the guy who’s been helping the Martians.” Corbett’s head sunk.
“Take him and put him with the King and Minister. Your just in time Corbett we have a firing squad ready.”
Corbett was taken and put beside the King and Prime Minister. How the hell am I going to get out of this one. They were asked if they had any last words. Corbett replied, “see you bastards in Hell.”
Corbett got slapped in the face. Then the Leader started shouting orders. “Left step. Aim. Fire.” The firing squad fired. Corbett was dead.




Epilogue: The Saviour

James was looking in the mirror trying to tie his tie. It had been nine months since he had helped capture city Alpha two. Laura came up behind him and put her arms around him and said, “would you like some help with that.” Laura tied James’ tie and kissed him. “Lovely day for a wedding.” James nodded.
Supplies were running desperately low, people were lucky to eat once a day now, food could last maybe another month, people would start dying of hunger maybe a month after that. James felt responsible for the famine that had spread among the colony. But everyone had forgiven him. They had told him it was the right thing to do. There were no sides now, the colony were working together trying to survive.
There was a large dust storm over the whole colony that was preventing communicating with satellites and the ships. Luckily there were contingencies for power, reserve batteries were charged in case of dust storms and, there was a large solar farm 300 kilometres south of the capital, it was 100 acres and had been one of the first things built alongside the capital. It couldn’t power the whole colony easily, but it was enough to survive.
James zipped up Laura’s dress and said, “I’ll see you at the altar.”  James walked to the court room where he had first had his hearing nearly two years ago. Captain Rogers was waiting to officiate. James walked up to where John was.
It seemed like a long wait, but then the wedding music started and Amber and Laura walked into the room. The wedding dress wasn’t long or expensive, it was simple. Amber and Laura walked down the aisle. Laura took her place behind Amber. Amber stood opposite John. Captain Rogers began to speak. “We are gathered here today to celebrate the love between Amber and John.” Amber began screaming as she experienced burst of pain.
“Captain skip to the I dos.”
“Do you John Carmichael take Amber Young to be your lawful wife?”
“I do.” John placed the ring on Amber’s finger.
“And do you Amber Young take John Carmichael to be your lawful husband?”
“I do.” Amber placed the ring on John’s finger.
“I now pronounce you man and wife. You may now kiss the bride.”
John and Amber kissed, it was a bit of a struggle as Amber had another contraction. “Get me to the infirmary, I’m going into labour.”
John and Amber were taken to the infirmary via a Rover while the others walked. A few hours later as the baby was being born there was a red alert.
Laura looked at one of the computer monitors. “James you have to come and see this.” It showed probes falling from the sky, and cargo from the Charon and Demeter. “The dust storm must be getting thinner.”
“We’re receiving a text file message, for the colony.”
“Open it.”
“It’s set to open on every screen in the capital which it will do. It can send itself through the cables to the other bases.”
“Open it.”
The message read:
Hello people of Mars, it’s your trusty spy Xander here. This is our final supply mission to you. I have programmed this message to appear when the supply probes arrive. 100 individual probes have been sent, and the Charon and Demeter are full of supplies as well. There is more than enough food to help you be sustainable and survive on your own. Attached is a full itinerary of what supplies you have been sent. Also, we have attached a treaty for independence. It has been signed by the official people in New Australia, it just needs two signatures from Martian borns and a signature from a Martian colonist. Farewell Xander.
At that moment John came into the room. “It’s a girl. Also, did you see the message from Xander.”
An hour later the treaty had been printed off and James, Laura and Amber signed it together. James and Laura were kneeling beside the bed to sign the treaty which they rested it on. Laura got up, but James didn’t. He looked at Laura and said five words. “Laura will you Marry me?”
Laura picked him up off his knees kissed him passionately and said, “yes.”
On the 28th of February 2147 John and Amber were married and gave birth to little baby girl Chandler, James and Laura were engaged, and Mars finally gained independence.
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At last my first novel published. I have always had a passion for writing and have lots of story ideas in my head so for my first novel I thought I would write a story that other people might want to read and a story you hardly ever see. Mars has always been a key aspect in different science fiction stories but you hardly see a story with Mars colonised by humans so I thought what would likely happen if we ever did colonise Mars and what could be possible in the future. So, the story started forming in my head and I started writing it. I’ve started writing novels before but never finished them because I always had a new and better idea.
I would like to thank my family once again for supporting me and helping me with my writing and just in general for being there for me.
I like sci-fi and fantasy books and TV so I have made some obvious and subtle references to my favourite franchises as a thank you to the authors and screen writers that inspired me to become a writer.
To the reader thank you for having the patience to read this novel, I know that there is probably plot holes and errors in the book but please bear with them, it is a first attempt after ll. If you guys like the story and if this story becomes popular, I do have ideas for the sequel.
Thanks everyone
D.I Young
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